
 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENDA OF COUNCIL MEETING  

JANUARY 16, 2024 AT 10:00 AM 

This is a proposed agenda which is subject to change by Mayor and Council without further notice. 

 

ROLL CALL……..FLAG SALUTE……..MOMENT OF SILENCE. 

 

PROCLAMATION: 

Corinne Clarke of Margaret Mace School North Wildwood: Governor’s NJ Educator of the Year 
 

APPOINTMENTS: 

Police Dept. 
 

MINUTES: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 19, 2023 and 

REORGANIZATION MEETING OF JANUARY 2, 2024  

 

COMMUNICATIONS:   
Receive & File: 

NJ URBAN ENTERPRISE ZONE AUTHORITY, RE: FY2024 UEZ Assistance Fund ($545,255) 

ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL JIF, RE: 2023-2024 Elected Officials Training  

ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL JIF, RE: 2023 Annual ACMJIF Report 

CAPE MAY COUNTY MUA, RE:  Rate Setting Report/Wastewater Program User Charges  

CAPE MAY COUNTY MUA, RE:  Solid Waste and Recycling User Charges 

CAPE MAY COUNTY MUA, RE:  December 2023 Regional Pump Station Flow Report 

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC, RE:  Winter Energy Assistance Program  

NEW JERSEY DEP, RE: Stormwater Discharge GPA Modification 

NEW JERSEY DEP, RE: Swimming Pool Discharge General Permit Renewal 

NEW JERSEY DEP, RE: NW Boardwalk Replacement Application 

NEW JERSEY DEP, RE: CAFRA Individual Permit Application, Seaport Pier  

CLEAN OCEAN ACTION, RE: 39th Annual Beach Sweeps for 2024, April 13 and October 19 

 

Receive & File w/ State: 

ST. DEMETRIOS GREEK ORTHODOX CHURCH, RE: Application for Social Affair Permit 

 
 

APPOINTMENTS: 

2024 Council Committees 

Buildings, Parks & Grounds Dept. 

Recreation Dept. 

Fire Dept. 

 

REPORTS: 

Various Depts. 
 

ORDINANCES: 

Ord. 1925 (1st Reading) – Amending Chapter 330, Peddling and Soliciting 

Ord. 1926 (1st Reading) – Capital Improvement Ordinance  

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

#51-24 Introduction of Boardwalk SID 2024 Budget 

#52-24 Authorizing Advertisement for Public Bid – 2405 Bdwk Lease 

#53-24 Authorizing Advertisement for Public Bid – Beach Umbrella Concession 

#54-24 Certifying Compliance with EEOC Enforcement Guidelines 

#55-24 Affirming the City’s Policy on Civil Rights, Discrimination and Harassment  

#56-24 Identifying Employees/Volunteers Assigned to State and County Task Forces/Teams 

#57-24 Approving Submission of 2023 Annual Report to DEP for Hereford Inlet Lighthouse 

#58-24 Appointment of Municipal Emergency Management Coordinator  

#59-24 Appointment of NW Representative to CMC Animal Shelter Advisory Board 



#60-24 Authorizing Intra-County Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement w/ County 

#61-24 Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (Carrigan) 

#62-24 Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (Anastasi & Cook) 

#63-24 Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (Maier) 

#64-24 Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (Mullen) 

#65-24 Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (Mitchell) 

#66-24 Authorizing Return of Balance of Escrow Deposit (Wynnefield) 

#67-24 Refund for Overpayment of Real Estate Taxes 

#68-24 Refund for Overpayment of Sewer Taxes 

#69-24 Confirming Sale of Block 115, Lot 6.01 (423 NW 18th Avenue) 

#70-24 Authorizing Postponement of Bid and Amendment of Bid Specifications (Gateway) 

#71-24 Authorizing Extension of Award of Contract – Police Department Renovations 

#72-24 Authorizing Award of Contract – 2024-2025 Trench Restoration 

#73-24 Authorizing Award of Contract – 2024-2025 Emergency Repair 

#74-24 Authorizing Award of Contract – 2024-2025 Concrete Repair 

 

 

COMMUNICATION:   
Receive & File: 

MAYOR PATRICK ROSENELLO, RE:  Appointment of Deputy OEM Coordinator 

 

VOUCHER LIST/FINANCE: Authorizing payment of all approved vouchers    

    

COUNCIL: 

PUBLIC: 

ADJOURNMENT:  
 

Next Regular Meeting:  Tuesday, February 6, 2024 @ 10:00 a.m. 

 

 

 











































Atlantic County Municipal 
Joint Insurance Fund

ACM JIF
ANNUAL REPORT

2023



2 
 

ACM JIF Member Municipalities 
Absecon City Millville City 

Avalon Borough Mullica Township 

Brigantine City Newfield Borough 

Buena Borough North Wildwood City 

Cape May City Northfield City 

Cape May Point Borough Ocean City 

Commercial Township Pleasantville City 

Corbin City Sea Isle City 

Deerfield Township Somers Point City 

Dennis Township Stone Harbor Borough 

Downe Township Upper Deerfield Township 

Egg Harbor Township Upper Township 

Estell Manor City Ventnor City 

Folsom Borough Waterford Township 

Galloway Township West Cape May Borough 

Hamilton Township West Wildwood Borough 

Linwood City Weymouth Township 

Longport Borough Wildwood City 

Lower Township Wildwood Crest Borough 

Margate City Woodbine Borough 

Middle Township  

 
JIFs are the most successful example of interlocal cooperation  

in the history of the State! 



3 
 

Message from the JIF Chairperson 
 
 
I have had the pleasure of serving as the Fund Chair for the Atlantic County Municipal Joint 
Insurance Fund (ACM JIF). The ACM JIF's main goal is to bring together municipalities to achieve 
savings and stability through comprehensive risk management, safety, and claims management 
programs. Currently, the ACM JIF combines resources from 41 member municipalities across 
three counties to reduce risks and lower costs. 
 
Our member municipalities have faced numerous challenges this year. Yet the ACM Joint 
Insurance Fund is a shining example of what municipal government can do when they directly 
participate in loss control and risk management programs. We thank each Fund Professional, 
Safety Coordinator, Claims Coordinator, Wellness Coordinator, as well as other municipal 
personnel for their active involvement over the past 36 years. 
 
The ACMJIF takes several steps to ensure that the Fund is managed responsibly. This includes 
regular reviews of professionals by standing committees and third-party audits to maintain the 
highest business standards. We also prioritize educating our staff and employees on new 
management risks, pending legislation, and the latest safety trends. We are proud of our 
collective accomplishments including the release of $2 million in dividends returned to ACM JIF 
members in 2023. This brings our total dividend return to over $53.7 million since inception…a 
testament to the dedication of our entire team. 
 
Lastly, I would like to express my appreciation for the efforts of the Fund Chairs and Fund 
Commissioners who served this past year. I am excited to continue our work in 2024. 
 
 
 
Elizabeth Woods, Human Resources Director 
Ocean City 
2023 ACM JIF Fund Chair  



4 

JIF Organizational Structure 

MEMBER MUNICIPALITY 

FUND COMMISSIONER 
(Elected Official or Employee) 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
(Seven Members) 

FUND 
ADMINISTRATOR 

COMMITTEES 

ACTUARY AUDITOR SAFETY COVERAGE 

CLAIMS 
ADMINISTRATOR 

STRATEGIC 
PLANNING 

ATTORNEY TREASURER 

DEFENSE PANEL 

MANAGED CARE 

SAFETY DIRECTOR 

WELLNESS 
DIRECTOR 

FINANCE 

NEW MEMBER 
REVIEW 

NOMINATING 

The success o
 
f the ACM JIF stems from colla

 
boration among member municipalities.  The Fund hires 

professionals including a Fund Administrator, Safety Director, and specially qualified defense attorneys 
to assist members in the daily operations of the JIF. Additional information is available at acmjif.org 

EPL/POL/CYBER 

CLAIMS REVIEW LAW ENFORCEMENT 
CONSULTANT 

https://acmjif.org/


5 
 

JIF Leadership 
2023 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
The Executive Committee serves as the Governing Body of the Fund with five elected Fund Commissioners 
serving along with the Chairperson and the Secretary of the Fund. During their terms of office, members of 
the Executive Committee shall exercise the full power and authority of the Fund Commissioners as expressly 
provided by the Fund’s Bylaws.  
 

Fund Chairperson:  Elizabeth Woods, Ocean City 

Fund Secretary:  Jessica Bishop, Dennis Township 

 

Executive Committee Member 1:   Roy Spolotore, Upper Deerfield Township 
Executive Committee Member 2:  Heather Sparks, Commercial Township 
Executive Committee Member 3:  Ed Grant, Cape May Point Borough 
Executive Committee Member 4:  Scott Wahl, Avalon Borough 
Executive Committee Member 5:  Varvara Keun, Middle Township  
 

 

Executive Committee Member Alternate 1:   Steve O’Connor, Wildwood City 
Executive Committee Member Alternate 2:  Dawn Marie Bascelli, Deerfield Township   
Executive Committee Member Alternate 3:  LaVerne Kirn, Corbin City 
Executive Committee Member Alternate 4:  Lisa McLaughlin, Margate City 
Executive Committee Member Alternate 5:  DJ Ayres, Weymouth Township 
Executive Committee Member Alternate 6:  Leigh Ann Napoli, Linwood City 
 

 
 

 



6 
 

Message From the Executive Director 
  
It is remarkable to acknowledge that the 2023 Fund Year is drawing to a close. Despite the numerous 
challenges faced in recent years, I am confident that the most arduous days are now behind us. Throughout 
this period, the JIF has successfully weathered the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, significant statutory 
and regulatory changes, social inflation, and the most challenging excess and reinsurance market since the 
1980s. A more comprehensive discussion of these challenges can be found in the subsequent sections. 
Nevertheless, our JIF remains committed to providing relevant programs and resources to assist our 
members in effectively managing the risks associated with their operations, while maintaining its position as 
one of the most financially stable JIFs in the State. 
 

Another notable development in recent years has been the turnover of Fund Commissioners and long-term 
municipal JIF representatives, such as Safety & Claims Coordinators. This turnover reflects a broader 
challenge faced by many members in recruiting and retaining qualified employees. Consequently, my office 
has undertaken a reevaluation of our practices. This has resulted in the implementation of measures such as 
increased utilization of virtual meetings, expanded opportunities for online training, and other initiatives 
aimed at saving costs and time. It is my hope that these changes will alleviate the difficulties faced by 
members in participating in the JIF, while continuing to address their needs effectively. 
 

Lately, a concern that has been brought to my attention pertains to the "JIF required training." Many 
members believe that the JIF imposes an excessive training burden on their employees. However, it is 
important to clarify that the JIF does not mandate any training. The training that member employees are 
required to undergo throughout the year is mandated by Federal and State Government, as well as other 
regulatory agencies. The role of the JIF is to facilitate the availability of this mandated training to our 
members in the most efficient and effective manner possible, ensuring compliance. While the JIF does offer 
financial incentives for members to participate in various training opportunities (such as Annual Elected 
Officials Training and Bi-Annual Managers & Supervisor's Training), none of this training is mandated by the 
JIF. 
 

As we embark on a promising 2024, I encourage you to continue leveraging the multitude of resources 
available to you through your JIF membership. Furthermore, please do not hesitate to provide my staff and 
me with your feedback and suggestions on how we can enhance the value of your JIF experience. I would 
like to express my gratitude to the Fund Commissioners, Fund Professionals, and other municipally 
appointed JIF representatives for their unwavering dedication. Without their efforts, the JIF would not be 
equipped to withstand the current challenges and maintain the robust program we have today. 

Paul A. Forlenza, MGA  
Risk Program Administrators (RPA) 
2023 Executive Director for the ACM JIF  
 



7 
 

JIF Myths 
A common misconception is the notion that the JIF imposes training requirements on our members. It is 
important to clarify that training is not required by the JIF, but rather mandated by state and federal statutes 
and regulations, court mandates, and other agencies including the NJ Attorney General’s Office.  

While the JIF cannot require attendance, or participation in these programs, they are designed to help you 
comply with the training requirements mentioned above that place obligations on municipal officials and 
employees.  We strive to provide effective and efficient mechanisms by which our members can complete 
mandated training.  

Results: 

 Training helps prevent employee injuries and saves you money 

 Creates a “Culture of Safety” 

 Risk Management Programs protect your municipality 

 

 

And without training and risk management programs you will likely: 

 Encounter more claims  

 Face expensive lawsuits 

 Pay higher assessments 

 Suffer reputational harm 

 

 

 Online and in Person Safety Training 

 EPL/POL Training and Helpline 

 Wellness Program 

 Transitional Duty 

 Cyber Security Awareness  Initiatives 

 Law Enforcement Risk Management Services 

 

  

Training = Reduced Accidents = Less Money Spent on Claims = More $ for Your Community. 

 

Support the JIF by Encouraging Your Employees to Participate in These Programs: 

You have direct access to a variety of resources and Fund Professionals 
to support you in risk control efforts. 



8 
 

2023 Challenges 
2023 presented unique challenges to the Joint Insurance Fund.  Some meetings, seminars, and trainings 
moved to a virtual format, but safety and risk management did not take a break! 

HARDENING INSURANCE MARKET 
Rising costs for coverage occurred across all industries due to natural disasters, police shootings and 
judicial decisions, and increased number of cyber-attacks.  But even in a hard market, the MEL was able 
to restructure coverage to meet market demands while providing the most effective risk management 
solutions to our members. 

 Affects all Insurance Companies and JIFs 

 Both Personal and Commercial  

 Reinsurance Costs Driving nearly 30% of our Budget 

 

 

 

 

 
NOAA National Centers for Environmental Information (NCEI) U.S. Billion-Dollar Weather and Climate Disasters (2023). 
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/billions/, DOI: 10.25921/stkw-7w73 

20% of Billion Dollar events of the last 43 years happened since 2020. 

  Eighteen $1 billion property loss events in the U.S. in 2022 

 



9 
 

2023 Challenges  
 

These losses result in: 

 Lower Coverage Limits 

 Tighter Coverage Definitions 

 Increasing Rates 

 

 
NOAA National Centers for Environmental Information (NCEI) U.S. Billion-Dollar Weather and Climate Disasters (2023). 

https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/billions/, DOI: 10.25921/stkw-7w73 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



10 
 

2023 Challenges  
 Pension Offset 

Follows “Investigation” by the State Comptroller’s Office, where settlements for medical monitoring will 
no longer be granted.  All pending Workers’ Compensation petitions for claims where the employee 
receives an Accidental Disability Pension will need to be settled by the Workers’ Compensation carrier.  
As of 9/30/2023, ACM JIF Members had 18 of these claims with a total incurred value of over $3.8 million. 

 

 PTSD 
Claims related to post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) are increasing, particularly due to incidents 
involving police shootings, serious injuries, and traumatic events. These claims are becoming more 
expensive. As of 9/30/2023, there are 38 claims with a total incurred value of $2,290,116 for the fund year 
2023.   
 
 

 Reopeners 
Litigation Reopeners impact JIF claims.  An injured employee can “reopen” a previously settled Workers' 
Compensation matter within two years of final payment on the claim indicating a change in their medical 
condition that warrants the “reopening” of the claim resulting in additional litigation, medical, and other 
expenses.  In the past, it was unusual to see a claim reopen more than once.  Now, claims reopen four 
and five times resulting in escalating claims costs. As of 9/30/2023, collectively, ACM JIF Members had 
178 claims in “reopener” status.  These claims have a total incurred value of over $24.9 million. 
 

 

 Sexual Abuse and Molestation (SAM) Legislation: 
This law eliminated statute of limitations for civil actions by sexual abuse victims and Title 59 immunities 
cannot be used to defend these claims. Your JIF utilizes vetted JIF defense attorneys and provides strong 
litigation management, and provides training like the Protection & Safe Treatment of Minors Program 
and the Protecting Children for Employees and Volunteers online Training. As of 9/30/2023, ACM JIF 
Members had 20 of these claims with a total incurred value of over $409,000. 

 

 Firefighters Cancer Presumption  
This law applies to firefighters under the age of 75 with seven years of service suffering from fire-fighting 
related cancers.  The law opens the door to claims by current and former career and volunteer 
firefighters, regardless of the magnitude or extent of their exposures, and regardless of whether the 
cancer at issue has ever been definitively proven to be related to any firefighter exposures. Your JIF 
provides local management of these claims and ACM JIF members had 9 of these claims. These claims 
have a total incurred value of $195,000. 

 

 

 



11 
 

2023 Challenges  
 
 Recreational Marijuana 

Potential source of Police Liability claims due to varying levels of enforcement of the law. This legislation 
may also become a source of future Land Use claims. Your JIF Professionals are monitoring the possible 
impact on employee and Land Use matters. 

 

 Workers’ Compensation Disabilities Rate 
New Jersey saw the highest jump in Workers’ Compensation benefit rates since the early 1980s: a 
combined rate increase of 13.4% in the TTD rate since 2021. Increased from $969/week to $1,099/week. 

 

 Social Inflation 
Rising costs of insurance claims resulting from increasing litigation, broader definitions of liability, more 
plaintiff-friendly court decisions, and larger compensatory jury awards. Social Inflation is a general feeling 
that someone “needs to pay” when there’s some kind of damage or injury sustained, regardless of 
negligence. 

 

 COVID-19 
In the Spring of 2020, at the beginning of the pandemic, the New Jersey Legislature joined a handful of 
other states in making COVID 19, contracted by first responders and/or essential employees, 
compensable under the their Workers Compensation Act.   In New Jersey, 82% of COVID claims are from 
essential personnel, specifically police agency personnel.  While the organizational design of the JIF and 
MEL, coupled with a strong reinsurance program, assisted the MEL in managing these unforeseen costs, 
COVID has still had a significant impact on the JIF and MEL system.  While we are thankfully seeing a 
decrease in the overall number of COVID claims, in total, the NJ MEL System experienced more than 
$24.7 million in incurred costs and 8 fatalities since the beginning of the pandemic.  As of 6/30/23 the 
ACM JIF has received 1,259 COVID Claims with a total incurred value in excess of $2,537,000. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



12 
 

2023 Challenges  
 

 
 

 
 

 



13 
 

Your Risk Management Team 

  

FUND COMMISSIONER: 
The Fund Commissioner, a member of the governing body or a municipal employee, is responsible for 
the operation of the Fund in accordance with the Fund Bylaws and all applicable statutes and 
regulations. DUTIES: 

 Liaison between municipality and Fund   
 Attends all monthly meetings   
 Serves on JIF boards and committees 
 Monitors municipality’s participation and protects interests 

 

CLAIMS COORDINATOR: 
Each member municipality in the Fund appoints a Claims Coordinator.  It is the responsibility of the 
Claims Coordinator to oversee the reporting of claims within the municipality.  DUTIES: 

 Maintains claims forms and records 
 Ensures all claims are promptly reported and monitored 
 Relays information between municipality and claims adjusters 
 Can help control the cost and outcome of claims 

 

SAFETY COORDINATOR: 
The Safety Coordinator is appointed by the municipality to oversee the member’s safety efforts and act 
as a liaison between the municipality, the JIF Safety Director and other outside agencies.  DUTIES: 

 Chairs municipal Safety Committee & coordinates employee safety training 
 Ensure the annual Safety Contract is signed and the Safety Committee develops meaningful 

safety improvement objectives   
 Reviews and disseminates Safety Director Reports and Bulletins 

 

WELLNESS COORDINATOR: 
The Wellness Coordinator acts as a liaison between the Wellness Director and municipality.  DUTIES: 

 Coordinates all Wellness activities in support of the program mission 
 Posts and distributes Wellness materials  provided by the Wellness Director 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT CONSULTANT (RMC): 
The RMC is an Insurance Professional that provides guidance to member municipalities.  DUTIES: 

 Consults members to customize risk management programs for specific needs and goals 
 Understands local issues and helps members maximize JIF programs 
 Places optional coverage outside the JIF 

 



14 
 

Financial Highlights 
2023 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 Overall JIF Budget increase of 12.93% while maintaining all Member Benefits 
 Budget increase completely offset by surplus release 
 Funded MEL above liability to cover potential MEL Retro Surplus Trigger Premium in future years 
 Maintain SIR of $500K for Workers’ Compensation, Liability and Auto Claims 
 Maintain Property SIR of $100K 
 Continued use of the Renewal/Revaluation Program benefiting 3 members 
 No Members qualified for the Retrospective Program 

2024 FINANCIAL VISION 
 Overall JIF Budget increase of 9.7% prior to the removal of Corbin City, Egg Harbor Township and 

adding paid EMS services for Middle Township while maintaining all Member Benefits 
 Loss Funding increase of 3.65% ($574,631) inclusive of $607,000 directly attributable to “pension offset” 
 Excess Insurance Budget increase of 26.78% ($2,007,254) addition of EJIF coverage     
 Continued use of the Renewal/Revaluation Program benefiting 5 members 
 Continued use of the Retrospective Assessment Program – no members qualified 
 

OPERATING RESULTS SUMMARY: ALL FUND YEARS (1987 TO 9/30/23) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

$50.4 
MILLION 

CASH POSITION 
  
 
 
 

Our strong cash position can be attributed to 
member commitment to safety, risk 
management, and claims management. 

$53.7 
MILLION 

RETURN OF SURPLUS  
 
 

The JIF’s surplus release strategy is to create 
long term stability.  A conservative approach 
allows us to achieve that goal. 

$14.9 
NET CURRENT SURPLUS  
 
 
 

JIF Members shared $2 million in 
dividends released in 2023.   
 

MILLION 



15 
 

Financial Picture: Audit & Budget 
As of 12/31/22, the ACM JIF’s total assets decreased by -10.2% and its net position decreased by -43.3% over 
the prior year end following the release of $3,750,000 in surplus and the accrual for the potential liability 
due under the MEL Retrospective Program.  It is important to note that the Fund’s operating expenses 
represent less than 10% of the total JIF budget.  This is in comparison to other U.S. pools with a typical 
operating ratio of 20-25% and commercial insurers with operating expenses approaching 40%.  As of 
12/31/2022, the JIF had a cash balance in excess of $22.2 million with an additional $24.7 million in 
investments.  Total assets exceed $47.4 million.  These figures are indicative of the Fund’s financial strength 
and its ability to pay member claims well into the future. 
   
Net Position Summary 12/31/2022 12/31/2021 % Change 

Total Assets   $47,498,310 $52,366,311 -10.2% 

Net Position – Unrestricted $13,431,721 $19,242,569 -43.3%* 

*Change in Net Position includes the release of $3.75 million in dividends. 

THE BUDGET: FIVE COMPONENTS 

1. Loss Funds: The amount needed to pay claims within the JIF’s SIR and is based upon historical 
claims and exposure trends and certified by the JIF Actuary. 

2. Operations: Expenses related to the operation of the JIF.  Operating Expenses are kept at a 
reasonable level under the watchful eye of the Finance Committee. 

3. Member Benefits: Consists of member program benefit costs including Optional Safety Budget, 
Safety Incentive Program, EPL/Cyber Risk Management, Elected Officials Training, Wellness Incentive 
Program, and the Technology Risk Management Program. 

4. Excess Insurance Costs: Premiums paid for reinsurance or direct insurance purchases and protects 
the JIF from catastrophic claims. Provides coverage through the membership in the Municipal Excess 
Liability Joint Insurance Fund (MEL) which uses the joint purchasing power of its NJ JIFs to negotiate 
the lowest possible rates.    

5. RMC Fees: Consists of Risk Management Consultant fees.  



16 
 

2023 Budget Highlights  
 The pie chart below demonstrates the efficiency of the JIF program   

 A percentage of the JIF’s budget pays for member claims within the JIF Self Insured Retention (SIR) of 
$500,000 for Workers’ Compensation and Liability and $100,000 for property  

 Once a claim exceeds the local JIF level, the financial responsibility falls to the Municipal Excess Liability 
Joint Insurance Fund (MEL)   

 The chart below illustrates the allocation of member dollars to JIF expenses 

 The JIF never relinquishes control over the claim; however, claims experts at the MEL level monitor the 
more challenging claims and provide guidance on their disposition 

 

 

 

RMC: 
2.79% Member Benefits: 

2.60%

Excess Insurance:
27.41%

Operations: 9.51%

Loss Funds: 
57.69%

2023 Budget 



17 
 

2024 Budget & Strategy  

 

2024 VISION  
Part of the ACM JIF’s financial strength stems from member involvement.  Member Benefits represent 2.39% 
of the overall Budget and provides funding for members’ local safety, risk management and Law 
Enforcement risk management which helps control their claims.  Each of these programs will remain in 2024.  
In addition, the JIF continues to face many challenges outside of its control, including recent legislative and 
regulatory changes, which are placing a greater financial burden on the JIF.  This includes an additional 
$547,000 in loss funding to pay for the “Pension Offset” Directive.  In addition, effective January 1, 2024, the 
ACM JIF will be joining the Environmental Risk Management Joint Insurance Fund (E-JIF).  Membership in 
the E-JIF will provide members with access to valuable environmental resources and programs as well as 
environmental impairment liability coverage.  Overall, we will continue to assist our members in managing 
the risk associated with their operations through effective safety & risk management programs while 
managing claims when they occur. 

While the 2024 JIF budget is increasing $423,000, we are releasing $2.0 million  
in surplus to members to mitigate the impact. 

RMC: 
2.72%

Member 
Benefits: 

2.39%

Excess Insurance:
32.03%

Operations: 9.29%

Loss Funds: 
53.57%

2024 Budget 



18 
 

Financials: Dividends and Recoveries 
DIVIDENDS  
The JIF is a not for profit public entity. Therefore, unspent funds are returned to the members with interest! 
$2,000,000 was returned in 2023. In total $53.79 million* has been returned to current and former ACM JIF 
members since inception. Below is the historical dividend distribution grand total for all years.  Dividends 
are returned in direct proportion to a member’s contribution.  
 

 

MEMBER TOTAL 

Absecon City $435,302 

Avalon Borough $1,374,125 

Brigantine City $ 2,150,477 

Buena Borough $477,595 

Cape May City $ 881,700 

Cape May Point Borough $45,805 

Commercial Township $132,846 

Corbin City $17,205 

Deerfield Township $180,825 

Dennis Township $711,441 

Downe Township $31,391 

Egg Harbor Township $3,633,670 

Estell Manor City $96,615 

Folsom Borough $202,942 

Galloway Township $1,470,200 

Hamilton Township $2,247,331 

Linwood City $475,166 

Longport Borough $745,319 

Lower Township $2,350,156 

Margate City $897,540 

Middle Township $1,862,984 
 

MEMBER TOTAL 

Millville City $2,017,849 

Mullica Township $369,878 

Newfield Borough $305,871 

North Wildwood City $2,050,754 

Northfield City $1,370,414 

Ocean City $6,493,167 

Pleasantville City $3,648,963 

Sea Isle City $2,030,002 

Somers Point City $1,538,236 

Stone Harbor Borough $620,304 

Upper Deerfield Township $522,784 

Upper Township $416,687 

Ventnor City $2,760,294 

Waterford Township $1,455,568 

West Cape May Borough $120,426 

West Wildwood Borough $121,331 

Weymouth Township $132,387 

Wildwood City $1,795,349 

Wildwood Crest Borough $1,487,327 

Woodbine Borough $152,232 

*Includes additional dividends issued directly to members by the MEL. 



19 
 

Results in Additional Savings for the JIF Members! 

Subrogation 
 Refers to an insurer seeking reimbursement from the person or entity legally responsible for a claim after 

the insurer has paid out money on behalf of its insured 
 

 Includes any money paid out for property damage, medical costs, deductible amounts, diminished value, 
pain and suffering, loss of consortium, etc.  
 

 When pursuing, it is important to properly identify possible contractors, manufacturers, installers, 
suppliers, designers, subcontractors, etc. who might be held liable for claims against the JIF  
 

 The JIF recommends that each municipality retain purchasing records, invoices, manufacturer’s 
recommendations, specifications, instructions, damaged equipment, change orders, etc. for prompt 
identification and notification of responsible parties 
 

 Municipalities must also retain all contracts, Certificates of Insurance & Hold Harmless Agreements, so 
that the responsible party can also be placed directly on notice of the lien rights  
 

EXAMPLE 
A police vehicle is struck by another party and a police officer is injured. We seek reimbursement from the 
responsible party to recover monies paid for our vehicle damages and for the officer’s injuries. 

RECOVERIES  
 

 

 

 

        

 

  

$706,467 

Money Collected in 2023: 
(Through 10/31/23) 

Total Recoveries Since  
ACM JIF Inception: 

$12,023,243 



20 
 

Claims Roadmaps 
In an effort to streamline the claims reporting process, we designed Claims Roadmaps for each line of 
coverage. By following these clear directions, you can easily navigate through the necessary steps and access 
important contact information and links to essential forms, all conveniently located in one document. 
Located on the JIF Website under the Claims menu. 
 

 

 
 



21 
 

 

 

 



22 
 

Number of Occurrences 
Auto Liability 

 

Total Dollars Incurred 
Auto Liability 

 

Claims Data 
As illustrated below, 55% of the JIF’s claims are Workers’ Compensation, but they account for 72% of the 
JIF’s claims dollars.  Upon joining the JIF, every member is required to appoint a Claims Coordinator who 
serves as a point of contact between the member and the JIF Claims Administrator.  Special training, 
including the Claims Roadmaps are provided to the Claims Coordinator so that they are prepared to handle 
any claims situation that arises within their municipality. 
  
The JIF Workers’ Compensation Claims Adjusters are assigned a maximum of 150 indemnity files at any given 
time, allowing them to focus on working their files to achieve the best possible results. 
  
The JIF also employs the services of the very best defense attorneys in South Jersey to defend the JIF’s claims.  
Their knowledge of Workers’ Compensation statutes and claims against public entities produces excellent 
results for the JIF and its members.  Comprehensive Litigation Management Guidelines assure the JIF 
members that their claims are being defended in the most aggressive and cost-effective means possible. 

CLAIMS BY LINE OF COVERAGE - FUND YEARS 2017-2022 (VALUED AS OF 9/30/23) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
General Liability 

 

6% 

24% 

 
Property 

 
15% 

 
Workers’ Comp 

 
55% 

 
General Liability 

 

3% 

17% 

 
Property 

 
8% 

 
Workers’ Comp 

 
72% 



23 
 

Managed Care 
Medical and wage inflation significantly impact the JIF’s Workers’ Compensation costs, and the JIF must seek 
every possible way to control costs in this area.  The JIF contracts with a managed care provider to assist in 
this endeavor.  The JIF encourages all claims be reported within 3 days.  Early reporting allows the JIF to 
better control the course of the claim from the very start to assure that the best possible medical treatment 
is provided.   
 
A nurse case manager constantly monitors the course of medical treatment to make sure that essential 
services are delivered in a timely and cost efficient basis.  Medical care is delivered through a PPO/EPO 
network of doctors who specialize in occupational injuries and agree to the Fund’s rate schedule.  Through 
October 2023, 91% of medical services were delivered through the PPO/EPO network facilities, resulting in 
significant savings. 
 
Valued as of 10/31/23: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TRANSITIONAL DUTY 
On a final note, the JIF’s members have wholeheartedly embraced transitional duty, allowing injured 
employees to return to work in a productive role while completing their final course of treatment.  Dollars 
saved in disability payments, indemnity costs, and overtime costs can be measured in the hundreds of 
thousands of dollars.  

 

Claims Dollars Spent: 

Workers’ compensation 
claims account for 72% of 
claims dollars expended 
over the past six years 

72% 

 

ACM Average Days 
to Report*: 

The cost of a claim grows 
higher and higher for each 
day that it is not reported 

*(Not COVID-19) 

7.0 Days 
 

In Network Providers 
Savings: 

Most medical services are 
delivered through network 

facilities, resulting in  
significant savings 

67% 

Through October 2023, ACM members used 73% of the Transitional Duty days 
available and saved $537,656 by accommodating their employees. 

 

AMONG THE HIGHEST IN THE STATE! 



24 
 

Spotlight on Safety  
 

One of the most valuable benefits of membership in the Joint Insurance Fund is access to the many safety 
programs we offer.  As a condition of membership, municipalities adopt a Safety Policy, establish active 
Safety Committees, investigate accidents, commit to conducting self-inspections, and participate in 
specialized training programs and seminars designed to reduce risk to employees and members of the 
public. The JIF Safety Incentive Program ties all of these elements together by recognizing and rewarding 
members for engagement in these activities.   

  

 

  

Safety Policy 

Adoption of a Safety Policy by the Governing 
Body shows a commitment from municipal 
leadership to the principles of safety and risk 
management. 

 

Safety Committees 

Safety Committees meet on a regular basis to 
review accidents, address safety issues, assign 
responsibility for completion of tasks, and 
evaluate all aspects of the safety program. 

 

Accident Investigations 
Your supervisors conduct accident 
investigations to determine the root cause of an 
incident.  This review is a valuable tool in 
determining whether additional training or 
safety equipment is needed. 

 

Self-Inspections 
The JIF trains employees to look for hazards 
throughout the municipality.  These inspections 
are documented and serve as valuable tools in 
addressing areas in need of improvement and 
defending negligence claims brought against the 
municipality. 

Training 
The JIF offers dozens of training programs 
designed to address sources of accidents that 
have the potential to injure employees and 
members of the public.  Classes and seminars 
are conducted in person, on-line, and through 
virtual platforms. 

JSO’s 
Job Safety Observation’s provide insight as to 
how the jobs are performed regarding safety and 
adherence to procedure. Observations can also 
be used to describe a worker’s position to a 
physician when trying to offer transitional duty or 
determine fitness for duty. 



25 
 

Spotlight on Safety 
The ACM JIF provides essential safety programs that deliver savings and stability to every member.    
A strong commitment to safety and risk management is key to the JIF’s success.  
 

On Site Safety Training Regional Training Seminars 
Leadership Academy Right to Know (RTK) Services 
Fire / EMS Resources Shift Briefings (Tool-Box Talks) 
PEOSH / OSHA Updates Safety Director Bulletins 
Safety Incentive Program (SIP) Equipment and Facilities Safety Checklists 
Member Consults Law Enforcement Consults 
Written Program Compliance/Model Policies Driver Training Programs (S:ERVE)  
Optional Safety Budget (OSB) Job Safety Observations 
Infographics Job Hazard Assessments 

MEL SAFETY INSTITUTE (MSI)  
On Monday, May 1, 2023, the new MSI Learning Management System was launched. 

 MSI LIVE: MSI LIVE are live, instructor-led in-person classes and live, instructor-led webinars.  Since they 
are live, interactive, and instructor-led, the MSI can offer continuing education credits for many municipal 
designations and certifications. Through 11/1/2023, 879 MSI LIVE training events occurred this year. 

 MSI NOW: MSI NOW are recorded videos and new streaming online classes. Through 11/1/2023, 2,658 
MSI NOW training events occurred this year. 

 MSI EXPO: MSI EXPO is in-person training opportunities throughout New Jersey in a calendar year. 
Employees will be able to attend one 4-hour “track” of training in the various topics offered: 
 Excavation, Trenching, and Shoring (4 Hours) 
 Flagger and Work Zone Safety (4 Hours) 
 Fast Track to Safety (Haz/Com, Bloodborne Pathogens, Lockout/Tagout, Fire Safety) 
 Confined Space Entry (3 Hours) 
 Practical Leadership (3 Hours) 

 MSI VIDEO BREIFINGS: These short video briefings are designed to focus on one limited topic. These 
videos are a quick and effective way to add best practices to your regular safety briefings. Examples: 

Asbestos Safety Overview  Fire Extinguisher Monthly Inspections 

Playground Risk Management Safety Committee Meetings 

Safety Committee Best Practices Customer Service 

Exiting and Entering Trucks Mark Out Safety 



26 
 

Safety Director Initiatives 
 

The Safety Directors Office at J.A. Montgomery Consulting conducts law enforcement risk management 
activities. In 2023, we visited 24 law enforcement agencies. During these consultations, we supplied guidance 
documents on police licensing, mental health services (988), Use of Force, social media, School Threat 
Assessment Teams, cyber security, and employee wellness.  

The New Jersey Municipal Excess Liability Fund incentivizes police chiefs and command-level officers to 
attend risk management training on a biennial basis. In 2023, personnel from J.A. Montgomery conducted 
six training sessions to meet this requirement. The training included presentations on qualified immunity, 
the Law Against Discrimination, (CEPA) Conscientious Employee Protection Act, Gap Analysis, and 
continuous improvement. 

Member municipalities of the RPA-managed joint insurance funds hosted two four-day first-line supervisors 
classes. The Career Survival Class for Police Officers, Preparing for First Amendment Audits, and Below 100 
were also offered to the members, and they were well attended.  

The Law Enforcement Team at J.A. Montgomery looks forward to serving the needs of our members in 2024. 

 

 

ACM JIF Safety Director Award Winner Andrew Mangam of Upper Township with 
Safety Director Keith Hummel at the 2023 ACM JIF Safety Breakfast 



27 
 

Wellness Initiatives  
One of the most important components to a thriving workforce is supporting and retaining healthy 
employees. Those who make their health a priority tend to be better at handling tasks, maintain greater 
focus, reduce stress/anxiety, use less sick time, cause fewer workplace accidents, and are generally more 
productive and cooperative. 

However, the presence of comorbidities within the workforce can negatively impact employee performance 
and contribute to an increase in Workers’ Compensation costs. According to a study conducted by the 
National Council on Compensation Insurance, “The average cost of Workers’ Compensation claims 
connected to a comorbid condition are almost twice as much as that of comparable claims that don’t involve 
comorbidities.” 

Studies continue to confirm that workplace Wellness Programs encourage staff to prioritize their health and 
reduce their likelihood of developing comorbid conditions. Wellness Programs are also known to help 
increase employee productivity and engagement, encourage an increase in employee physical activity, and 
inspire healthy behavior changes. Implementing a wellness program that caters to the needs of the 
employer/employees creates a culture of health and wellness within the workplace that makes employees 
feel valued, encourages healthy choices, and in the long-term, contributes to a decrease in Workers’ 
Compensation costs. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

     

    

     

  

Jordan Simone 
ACM JIF Wellness Director 



28 
 

Technology Risk Services  
 

CYBER JIF PROGRAM AND NEW STANDARDS  
The NJ Cyber JIF has released revised guidelines for the cyber 
security framework and restructured the deductibles.  A copy of 
the revised cyber security framework is found under the Cyber 
menu on the JIF website. In addition, NJ Cyber JIF launched their 
‘Members Only’ section of the site to prevent our 
communications from becoming a “road map” to bad actors.   
All documents concerning our risk control program, cyber 
framework, template policies and claim reporting is password 
protected. 

The Cyber JIF has moved the goal posts closer to YOU. The 
current Minimum Security Standards have been broken down 
into Basic and Intermediate “buckets”. All of the requirements 
are the same but have now been split into two “buckets” for 
your convenience. All the requirements and benefits for the Advanced “bucket” remain the same. 

If you have already filed paperwork for the current Minimum Security Standard and it has been accepted 
by the Fund Underwriter, then you automatically qualify for the Intermediate “bucket’. You do not need to 
resubmit the paperwork to the Fund Underwriter for approval.  You do have to be in compliance with the 
approved standards at the time of a cyber incident to be eligible for deductible reimbursement.  

The revised deductibles are as follows: 

Not In Compliance: $50,000 deductible plus 20% of next $300,000 in Co-Insurance ($60,000) = 
$110,000 Total Cost  

Basic : $35,000 

Intermediate : $20,000 

Advanced : $0 

The Cyber JIF’s Program aims to reduce the potential risk of a cyber-incident and improve the overall security 
posture of members. You can use your allotted Cyber EPL budget amount to offset the cost of implementing 
any of the requirements to become compliant with the program.   

 
 

 
 

 



29 
 

Technology Risk Services 
 CONTROLLING TECHNOLOGY RISKS 
To combat the rise in cybersecurity threats, the JIF continued services with vendors to deliver training to 
our members: 
 

 Wintsec Consulting: Jerry Caruso of Wintsec Consulting LLC is your JIF’s dedicated Technology Risk 
Management Director.  Cyber is very unique peril, and Jerry will assist JIF Members and/or their IT 
vendors in understanding and complying with NJ Cyber JIF security standards. 
 

 Wizer specializes in cybersecurity and data privacy employee awareness programs. Throughout the 
year, members assigned the “Cyber Security Awareness Training” course studied password best 
practices, tips to avoid malware, social media usage and much more. In addition, they provide 
Phishing Assessments to municipal employees which improves the ability to recognize and avoid 
phishing attacks, thereby reducing the risk of falling victim to cybercriminals. 
 

 D2 Cybersecurity provided Members with other technical services including External Network 
Vulnerability Scanning and Penetration Testing.  Our member municipalities receive monthly 
vulnerability scan reports from D2 which should be reviewed with their IT vendor to ensure any 
critical or high severity vulnerabilities are addressed. 

 

The availability of Cyber Insurance is becoming very restrictive and insurers are 
cancelling coverage for entities that do not implement safeguards to protect 

themselves from cyber-attacks. 

Found on the JIF 
Website under 

Cyber Menu 



30 
 

Risk Management 
EPL/POL Programs  
Employment Practices Liability (EPL) Helpline • Model EPL/POL Policies & Procedures    
Land Use Liability Training Booklet on JIF Website 
  

Law Enforcement Risk Management Tools 
Online Training  •  Law Enforcement Bulletins  •  Law Enforcement Risk Management Consultant 
Police Chief Ad Hoc Committee  •  Police Accreditation Financial Incentives  
MSI Law Enforcement Resources on NJ MEL Website 
 

ORIGAMI 
Origami is a private, customized exposure database management system for the JIF members to 
manage their exposure data to better control risks. 
 

ACMJIF.ORG Website 
Download monthly agenda packets and meeting minutes, access contact information, review JIF 
policies and procedures for various programs, request certificates of insurance, and obtain vouchers 
or other important documentation. Visit the ACMJIF.ORG Website here. 
 

Wellness Incentive Program 
Designed to assist members in meeting their own Wellness objectives by providing financial 
reimbursement for wellness and health related items and programs geared toward reducing Workers’ 
Compensation costs. 
 

Cyber 
Cyber JIF  •  Cyber Hygiene Training  •  Phishing Exercises  •  System Vulnerability Scanning 
Penetration Testing  •  Model Policies & Procedures  •  Prompt Breach Recovery Services 
 

Additional Financial Tools  
Optional Safety Budget (OSB)  •  Safety Incentive Program (SIP)  •  EPL / Cyber Risk  
Management Budget 
 

Other Risk Management Tools 
Model Indemnification & Hold Harmless Language Agreement  
TULIP (Tenant User Liability Insurance Program)  •   Certificate of Insurance Guidelines  
Model Municipal Facility Use Agreement 
 

https://melsafetyinstitute.org/law-enforcement-2/
https://acmjif.org/


31 
 

EPL/POL Programs 
 

Sexual harassment, hostile work environment, and similar employment issues present a unique risk to 
public entities.  Managers and supervisors must understand the critical role that they play in managing 
this area of risk.  A strict “No Tolerance” policy must be established and understood by everyone in the 
organization.  Fortunately policies and training that address these issues are abundantly available 
through your JIF: 

MANAGERS AND SUPERVISORS TRAINING  
Every two years, the JIF offers Managerial and Supervisor Training focusing on the prevention of harassment 
and discrimination, implicit bias, addressing employee complaints, the role and obligations of a manager, 
and the enforcement of municipal policies and procedures. Multiple virtual sessions were held throughout 
2023. 

POLICE COMMAND STAFF TRAINING 
Police Departments are involved in a high percentage of employment-related litigation, and this training 
offered is one of the required elements for the incentive under the MEL’s Employment Practices Liability 
(EPL) Plan of Risk Management program. Failure to attend training can lead to costly litigation and may 
result in higher co-pays and deductibles for EPL. Multiple in person sessions were held throughout 2023. 

NON-SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEE AND VOLUNTEER TRAINING  
Offered through the MEL Safety Institute (MSI), this effective anti-harassment program includes training on 
the right of each employee to a workplace free of harassment and each employee’s duty to respect the 
rights of all other employees.  

LAND USE TRAINING  
In response to a growing number of Public Official Liability claims being brought against member 
municipalities due to the actions of their Land Use Board(s), the JIF developed a Land Use Liability Training 
Booklet that outlines some of the most common causes of Land Use litigation.  Located under the EPL tab 
on the JIF website. 

 
 
 

“I am a new claims coordinator and the 2023 ACM JIF Planning Retreat was informative and helped 
me understand the process a little better. The scenarios were interesting and kept my attention.” 

 

Tara Rosenberg, Human Resource Specialist 
Borough of Wildwood Crest 

 

 

https://acmjif.org/land-use-training/
https://acmjif.org/land-use-training/


32 
 

Updated EPL Policies  
Members who have adopted the MEL’s model employment practices risk control program are eligible for 
lower deductibles. These programs must be updated every two years to remain eligible. Required items 
include the following: 

 Adopt and distribute updated Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual  

 Complete the Managerial and Supervisory Training (Over 650 Personnel Trained in 2023*) 

 Complete Police Command Staff Training (Over 500 Police Command Staff Trained in 2023*) 

 Offer Anti-Harassment training to all other personnel 

 Adopt the Model Civil Rights resolution 

 Distribute Conscientious Employee Protection Act notice to all personnel 

 Adopt and distribute the Employee Handbook 

 Review NJ MEL Helpline for Employment Practices   

Compliance with the program will result in lower deductibles, co-insurance and help prevent claims.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Employment Practices Helpline 
Employment related liability claims continue to present themselves, 
triggering significant financial, reputational, and public relations concerns 
for our members.  These claims include allegations of discrimination, sexual 
harassment, hostile workplace, and whistleblower retaliation.  While your 
Joint Insurance Fund issues Model Employment Policies and Procedures, 
Employee Handbooks, and bi-annual seminars for managers and 
supervisors, issues arise that require immediate support. 
 

The Employment Practices Helpline was created in March 2019 to specifically 
address this need.  This dedicated resource guides members on 
employment related issues.  Designated municipal officials can call 1 of 3 
municipal attorneys with expertise in NJ Employment Law and receive 
guidance on issues ranging from the Family Medical Leave Act, the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, as well as Wage and Hour inquiries. 
 

The purpose of the Helpline is to help members avoid pitfalls in addressing 
these issues that may result in costly litigation and reputational harm. 

Total Calls Since Launch of Helpline in March of 2019:  321 
Total calls in 2023:  78  

(Includes calls from all MEL affiliated JIFs) 
 

*Includes ACM, BURLCO and TRICO JIFs 

https://acmjif.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/MEL-Employment-Practices-Helpline-Flyer-v2-1.pdf


33 
 

OPRA Roadmap  
The Open Public Records Act (OPRA) is a New Jersey law that governs public access to government records 
maintained by public agencies in New Jersey.  To streamline the request process, we developed an OPRA 
Request Roadmap for all JIF members.  The Roadmap clearly describes each step and who to contact – all 
in one easy to read document. Find it on the JIF website under “Operational Policies” on the Operating 
Documents page. 

 



34 
 

Fund Committees 
 
  

CLAIMS REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 Serves as the focal point for communication between the Claims Administrator and the Fund 

Commissioners 
 Reviews all Payment Authorization Requests (PARs) and litigation strategies with the Fund’s 

Attorney 
 Advises the Executive Committee regarding claims administration and payments 
COVERAGE COMMITTEE 
 Serves as a focal point for discussion on issues pertaining to coverage, underwriting, and 

reinsurance  
 Advises on coverage requirements, industry issues, the efficiency and clarity of the JIF in 

addressing areas of insurance outside of its normal purview, retention and reinsurance 
issues, and underwriting guidelines 

EMPLOYMENT PRACTICE LIABILITY & CYBER COMMITTEE 
 Advises the Executive Committee on the source, amount, and types of claims and their 

financial impact on members and on the JIF 
 Reviews observational, statistical, and historical information and recommends policies to be 

adopted to reduce or mitigate the financial impact of claims on the membership  
FINANCE COMMITTTEE 
 Creates annual budget to fund claims and special programs 
 Oversees the annual JIF audit 
 Reviews financial position and recommends the return of surplus to members 

NEW MEMBER REVIEW COMMITTEE 
 Reviews applications from municipalities who wish to become members of the JIF for 

compliance with membership criteria including safety programs and risk factors 

NOMINATING COMMITTEE 
 Comprised of the Chairs of all standing Committees of the JIF, the two most recent past JIF 

Chairpersons still serving as Fund Commissioners, and two members at large chosen by the 
sitting JIF Chair 

 Reviews and nominates candidates for positions on the Executive Committee   

SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 Advises the Executive Committee on safety policies and performance 
 Works with the Safety Director to identify services which may be provided by the JIF to 

member municipalities in order to reduce the risks of accidents 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 Serves as the focal point for communication between the Administrator, the Fund 

Commissioners, and other professionals regarding long range strategies which should be 
pursued to ensure the integrity, growth, and viability of the JIF 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 $ 

 



35 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Mission Statement 

  
We are an organization of municipalities united 

to achieve savings and stability through 
comprehensive insurance, safety, and claims 

management programs dedicated to reducing 
public sector risk. 

  

 
 

JIF Programs Reduce 
Municipal Risk 

 

 
 

Long Term Solutions 
Save YOU Money 

  

 
 

Provide Financial 
Strength and Stability 
  



36 
 



37 
 

 

 

 

Tens of millions of dividends returned to your community. 
That’s the power of the Municipal Joint Insurance Fund. 































































































































1

W. Scott Jett

From: Davis, Marie F:(ACE) <marie.davis@atlanticcityelectric.com> on behalf of Town, 
Veronica A:(ACE) <veronica.town@atlanticcityelectric.com>

Sent: Thursday, December 21, 2023 7:28 AM
Subject: EXTERNALAtlantic City Electric Reminds Customers About Available Energy Assistance 

as Temperatures Dip

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Winter brings colder temperatures, which leads to increased energy use and higher energy bills. Atlantic City 
Electric reminds customers to take advantage of billing assistance programs, including the Low-Income Home 
Energy Assistance Program, or LIHEAP, a federally funded program that helps limited-income households with 
their home energy bills. Customers should not wait for winter heating bills to arrive before applying for help – 
LIHEAP is a first come, first serve program and is only available until funding runs out.    

LIHEAP provides grants in varying amounts (up to $931) with no payback required, based on a household's 
income, type of fuel and type of dwelling. Homeowners, renters, roomers, and subsidized housing tenants may 
also be eligible. Customers do not have to be behind on their bills to receive a grant. 

South Jersey customers can apply for LIHEAP energy assistance through the Department of Community 
Affairs website, by contacting their local LIHEAP Agency, or by calling 800-510-3102. Residents also can 
access the Department of Community Affairs self-screening tool to help determine what energy assistance 
benefits they may qualify for. 

With winter weather officially here, customers should prepare for potential spikes in energy bills as we warm 
our homes and businesses.  Atlantic City Electric understands that rising energy costs and inflation continue to 
impact our customers and the upcoming holiday season brings additional pressures. We are here to help and 
remain committed to supporting those facing difficulties through payment and energy assistance programs.” 

If customers do not meet LIHEAP requirements and are having difficulty paying their energy bills, Atlantic City 
Electric Customer Care is also available to help by offering: 

 Flexible payment arrangements that offer tailored payment plans 
 Extending payment periods for balances 
 Connecting customers with energy assistance funds 
 Budget Billing, which averages payments over a 12-month period and helps avoid seasonal spikes and 

provides a consistent monthly bill.   
  
Customers can contact Atlantic City Electric at 800-642-3780 or visit atlanticcityelectric.com/EnergyAssistance 
for more information.  
  
Other programs assisting Atlantic City Electric customers include: 

 The Universal Service Fund (USF) helps ensure energy bills are more affordable for eligible 
customers. Eligibility requirements for USF recently changed providing customers who previously may 
not have been eligible to now participate. The Fresh Start arrearage forgiveness portion of the program 
also is now open to past participants. Call 800-510-3102 or visit energyassistance.nj.gov for 
information. 

 New Jersey SHARES is a nonprofit corporation that provides assistance to income eligible customers. 
Visit njshares.org or call 866-657-4273. 

 The Payment Assistance for Gas and Electric (PAGE) program provides relief on natural gas and 
electric bills for limited-to moderate-income customers experiencing a temporary financial crisis. 
Customers can call 732-982-8710 or visit njpoweron.org. 



2

 Lifeline is a utility assistance program that offers $225 to persons who meet certain income guidelines. 
Utility customers as well as tenants whose utility bills are included in their rent can call 800-792-9745 
for details. 

  
Please feel free to pass along these winter saving tips to your constituents. 
  
Thank you, 
 
Ronnie Town | External Affairs Manager 
 
Atlantic City Electric | Governmental & External Affairs 
420 Route 9 North | Cape May Court House, NJ 08210 
o: 267-533-0825 | c: 609-849-4579 
atlanticcityelectric.com 
 

 
 
This Email message and any attachment may contain information that is proprietary, legally privileged, confidential and/or subject to copyright belonging 
to Exelon Corporation or its affiliates (“Exelon”).  This Email is intended solely for the use of the person(s) to which it is addressed. If you are not an 
intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivery of this Email to the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified that any 
dissemination, distribution or copying of this Email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please immediately notify the sender 
and permanently delete this Email and any copies. Exelon policies expressly prohibit employees from making defamatory or offensive statements and 
infringing any copyright or any other legal right by Email communication. Exelon will not accept any liability in respect of such communications. 
 

This Email message and any attachment may contain information that is proprietary, legally privileged, 
confidential and/or subject to copyright belonging to Exelon Corporation or its affiliates ("Exelon"). This Email 
is intended solely for the use of the person(s) to which it is addressed. If you are not an intended recipient, or the 
employee or agent responsible for delivery of this Email to the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified 
that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this Email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
message in error, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this Email and any copies. 
Exelon policies expressly prohibit employees from making defamatory or offensive statements and infringing 
any copyright or any other legal right by Email communication. Exelon will not accept any liability in respect 
of such communications. -EXCIP  





































































































































































1

W. Scott Jett

From: Nicholas Long
Sent: Wednesday, January 3, 2024 9:19 AM
To: Kyle Rutherford; W. Scott Jett; Jennifer Van Sant
Subject: FW: EXTERNALApplication Update for File No. 0500-07-0006.6 - NORTH WILDWOOD 

CITY@BOARDWALK REPLACEMENT - LUP230001

 
 

From: LUMITSupport@dep.nj.gov <LUMITSupport@dep.nj.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 3, 2024 9:16 AM 
To: plomax@lomaxconsulting.com; Nicholas Long <nlong@northwildwood.com> 
Cc: kip.lewarn@dep.nj.gov; christian.zografos@dep.nj.gov 
Subject: EXTERNALApplication Update for File No. 0500‐07‐0006.6 ‐ NORTH WILDWOOD CITY@BOARDWALK 
REPLACEMENT ‐ LUP230001 

 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the 
sender and know the content is safe. 

 
The Watershed & Land Management Program has determined that the submitted application DLUR File# 0500-07-0006.6 
- LUP230001 is complete for review. The 90-day statutory decision deadline on this application is February 
 12, 2024. Please note that there is no 90-day statutory deadline for Freshwater Wetlands permit applications. If additional 
information or clarification is needed, we will reach out to you or your agent directly. If you have any questions or 
concerns, please 
 contact the project manager and engineer copied on this email. Project Manager - Kip LeWarn Engineer - Christian 
Zografos __________________________________________________ Email Control ID: LU59-39964685 



























































 
 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1926 
 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING VARIOUS  

IMPROVEMENTS OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW 

JERSEY, APPROPRIATING $1,000,000 THEREFOR FROM 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND FOR THE FINANCING 

THEREOF 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY (not less than two-thirds of 

all members thereof affirmatively concurring) AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. The improvement described in Section 2 of this ordinance is hereby 

authorized to be undertaken by the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, New 

Jersey (the “City”) as a general improvement.  For the improvement or purpose described in 

Section 2, there is hereby appropriated the sum of $1,000,000 from the City of North Wildwood 

Capital Improvement Fund, said sum being inclusive of all appropriations heretofore made 

therefor. 

Section 2.   The improvements hereby authorized and the purpose of the appropriations is 

as follows: 

 Providing for the improvement of various buildings and public property, and 

Beach Replenishment in the City of North Wildwood including all work and 

materials necessary therefor and incidental thereto for an amount not to exceed 

$1,000,000. 

 Section 3.  The following matters are hereby determined, declared, recited and stated: 

The improvement or purpose described in Section 2 of this bond ordinance is not a current 

expense.  It is an improvement or purpose that the City may lawfully undertake as a general 

improvement, and no part of the cost thereof has been or shall be specially assessed on property 

specially benefitted thereby. 



 
 

 Section 4.  The capital budget of the City is hereby amended to conform with the 

provisions of this ordinance to the extent of any inconsistency herewith.  The resolution in the 

form promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of the amended capital budget 

and capital program as approved by the Director of the Division of Local Government Services 

is on file with the Clerk and is available there for public inspection. 

 Section 5.  This bond ordinance shall take effect upon its publication and passage in the 

manner provided by law. 

 

            ___________________________ 
                                                                         Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
_____________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
Introduced:    January 16, 2024 
Advertised:   January 24, 2044  
Hearing/Final: February 6, 2024 
Advertised:   February 14, 2024 
 
 



 

 

 
CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  1925 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 330, 
PEDDLING AND SOLICITING, OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

WILDWOOD 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood, in 
the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

Section One.  The portion of Ordinance No. 1785, adopted June 5, 2019, that has 
been codified in §330-1.1 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood is hereby 
supplemented by the addition of a paragraph, which shall be codified as §330-1.1E 
and which shall read as follows: 
 

E.  Regulations for concessionaires.  
 

Any and all concessionaires, or any person or persons employed by said 
concessionaires, vending coffee and iced coffee products on the beaches of the City 
of North Wildwood under a contract awarded pursuant to this chapter shall: 
 

1. Shall be clothed in matching uniforms which clearly identify the name of 
the concessionaire and the name of the individual vendor. 

 

2. Have the prices of its products clearly displayed on his/her vending carts, 
said prices having been printed computer printout or other technological 
means.  No hand-written signs or labels are permitted.  

 

Section Two.  The portion of Ordinance No. 1891, adopted December 6, 2022, that 
has been codified in §330-1.2 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood is hereby 
supplemented by the addition of a paragraph, which shall be codified as §330-1.2E 
and which shall read as follows: 
 

E.  Regulations for concessionaires.  
 

Any and all concessionaires, or any person or persons employed by said 
concessionaires, vending ice cream products on the beaches of the City of North 
Wildwood under a contract awarded pursuant to this chapter shall: 
 

1. Shall be clothed in matching uniforms which clearly identify the name of 
the concessionaire and the name of the individual vendor. 

 

2. Have the prices of its products clearly displayed on his/her vending carts, 
said prices having been printed computer printout or other technological 
means.  No hand-written signs or labels are permitted.  

 

Section Three.  If any portion of this Ordinance is determined to be invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, that determination shall have no effect upon the 
remainder of this Ordinance, which shall remain valid and operable. 
               
Section Four.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this 
Ordinance, to the extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are 
repealed. 
               

Section Five.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and 
publication as provided by law. 
      

  ________________________________ 
    Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
___________________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:  January 16, 2024       
Advertised:   January 24, 2024     
Hearing/Final: February 6, 2024     
Advertised: February 14, 2024      



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
INTRODUCTION OF BUDGET OF THE BOARDWALK SPECIAL 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION (SID) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:56-84, the Boardwalk Special 

Improvement District Management Corporation has submitted its annual budget 
for 2024, together with a financial report which explains how the budget 
contributes to the goals and objectives of the district; and 

 
WHEREAS, such statute requires that the budget shall be introduced in 

writing at a meeting of the governing body and that the approval thereof shall 
constitute a first reading which may be by title. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of 

the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, 
that the budget is hereby approved, a copy of which is attached hereto, that a 
hearing shall be held in the Council Chambers of the City of North Wildwood at 
10:00 AM on Tuesday, February 20, 2024, and that the budget and notice of the 
time and place of the hearing shall be published in the Cape May County Herald on 
Wednesday, January 24, 2024. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that after the public hearing the budget 

may be adopted by title without amendments or may be approved with 
amendments in accordance with the statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
****************************************************************************** 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY       COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 
16th day of January 2024. 
 
Dated    January 16, 2024            Signed______________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

 
Approved: __________________________                     

       Salvatore Zampirri, President of Council 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

     
51-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING CITY CLERK TO ADVERTISE FOR A CONCESSION CONTRACT  
FOR A BEACH UMBRELLA STAND CONCESSION 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40:61-37 provides that the governing body of municipalities bordering on the 

Atlantic Ocean “may let out to any person, any privilege, in any public parks, recreation grounds or 
places of public resort, upon such terms and conditions as it may prescribe;” and 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40:61-39 provides that, as to any agreement falling within the parameters of 

N.J.S.A. 40:61-37, “any such letting shall be to the highest bidder therefore;” and 
 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40:61-1h authorizes municipalities to lease concessions in any of its parks, 

beaches, waterfronts and places of public resort and recreation to the highest responsible bidder 
therefore; and 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:11-2(37) defines “concession” as a type of agreement or contract to 

which the Local Public Contracts Law is applicable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 138, Article III of the Code of the City of North Wildwood, as amended, sets 

forth the local ordinances that are applicable to the North Wildwood concession contract for the rental of 
beach umbrellas, beach chairs, cabanas and flotation devices; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City’s last concession contract for the rental of beach umbrellas, beach chairs, 

cabanas and flotation devices is about to or has expired and City Council deems it prudent that the 
availability of a new concession contract be advertised. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of Council of the City of North 

Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 
1)  All of the statements of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though 

the same were set forth at length. 
 
2)  The City Clerk is authorized to advertise for a beach umbrella concession contract for the 

summer season of 2024 at a minimum bid of $__10,000_ for the season. 
 
********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 
2024. 
 

Dated: January 16, 2024                                       Signed: ___________________________ 
                           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 
             APPROVED: ____________________________ 
              Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor

  
 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 

Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 

53-24 
 

               



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 

AUTHORIZING LEASE OF CITY PROPERTY 
(2405 BOARDWALK) 

 
WHEREAS, the Local Lands and Buildings Law (N.J.S.A. 40A:12-1 et. seq) authorizes municipalities 

to lease any “real property..... not needed for public use...” (N.J.S.A. 40S:12-14); and 
 

WHEREAS, in the case of such leases being made to private persons for purposes other than those set 
forth in N.J.S.A. 40A:12-15 said leases “shall be made to the highest bidder by open public bidding at auction 
or by submission of sealed bids” (N.J.S.A. 40A:123-14); and 
 

WHEREAS, Council is of the opinion that the municipality owned real property that is the subject of 
this Resolution is not needed for public use. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

 
1)  All of the statements of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 

same were set forth at length. 
 
2)  The City Clerk is authorized to advertise for the lease of a property located at 2405 Boardwalk for 

the summer season of 2024 at a minimum bid of $25,000.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
****************************************************************************************** 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of 
the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 2024. 
 
Dated: __January 16, 2024_______                                        Signed: ___________________________ 
                           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
 
                        APPROVED: ____________________________ 
               Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 

52-24 
 
 
 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

TO AFFIRM THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD’S CIVIL 
RIGHTS POLICY WITH RESPECT TO ALL OFFICIALS, 

APPOINTEES, EMPLOYEES, PROSPECTIVE EMPLOYEES, 
VOLUNTEERS, INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS AND MEMBERS 

OF THE PUBLIC THAT COME INTO CONTACT WITH 
MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, OFFICIALS AND VOLUNTEERS 

 

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City of North Wildwood to treat 
the public, employees, prospective employees, appointees, volunteers and 
contractors in a manner consistent with all applicable civil rights laws and 
regulations including, but not limited to, the Federal Civil Rights Act of 
1964 as subsequently amended, the New Jersey Law Against 
Discrimination, the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Conscientious 
Employee Protection Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of North Wildwood has 
determined that certain procedures need to be established to accomplish this 
policy. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and 
Council of the City of North Wildwood, County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, that: 
 

1. No official, employee, appointee or volunteer of the City by whatever 
title known, or any entity that is in any way a part of the City shall 
engage, either directly or indirectly, in any act, including the failure 
to act, that constitutes discrimination, harassment or a violation of 
any person’s constitutional rights while such official, employee, 
appointee, volunteer or entity is engaged in or acting on behalf of the 
City’s business or using the facilities or property of the City. 

2. The prohibitions and requirements of this resolution shall extend to 
any person or entity, including but not limited to any volunteer 
organization or inter-local organization, whether structured as a 
government entity or a private entity, that receives authorization or 
support in any way from the City to provide services that otherwise 
could be performed by the City. 

3. Discrimination, harassment and civil rights shall be defined for 
purposes of this resolution using the latest definitions contained in 
the applicable Federal and State laws concerning discrimination, 
harassment and civil rights. 

4. The City Administrator shall establish written procedures for any 
person to report alleged discrimination, harassment and violations of 
civil rights prohibited by this resolution.  Such procedures shall 
include alternate ways to report a complaint so that the person 
making the complaint need not communicate with the alleged 
violator in the event the alleged violator would be the normal contact 
for such complaints. 



5. No person shall retaliate against any person who reports any alleged 
discrimination, harassment or violations of civil rights, provided 
however, that any person who reports alleged violations in bad faith 
shall be subject to appropriate discipline. 

6. The City Administrator shall establish written procedures that require 
all officials, employees, appointees and volunteers of the City as well 
as all other entities subject to this resolution to periodically complete 
training concerning their duties, responsibilities and rights pursuant 
to this resolution. 

7. The City Administrator shall establish a system to monitor 
compliance and shall report at least annually to the governing body 
the results of the monitoring. 

8. At least annually, the City Administrator shall cause a summary of 
this resolution and the procedures established pursuant to this 
resolution to be communicated within the City.  This communication 
shall include a statement from the governing body expressing its 
unequivocal commitment to enforce this resolution.  This summary 
shall also be posted on the City’s website. 

9. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

10. A copy of this resolution shall be published in an official newspaper 
of the City in order for the public to be made aware of this policy and 
the City’s commitment to the implementation and enforcement of 
this policy. 
 

********************************************************************************************************** 

I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, 
State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing statement is a correct and true 
copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood 
at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January 2024. 
 
Dated:    January 16, 2024 
                   Signed: ___________________________ 
           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

 
Approved: __________________________
     Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

              
55-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

CERTIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH THE UNITED STATES 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION’S 

“ENFORCEMENT GUIDANCE ON THE CONSIDERATION OF 
ARREST AND CONVICTION RECORDS IN EMPLOYMENT 

DECISIONS UNDER TITLE VII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 
1964” 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5 as amended by P.L. 2017, c.183 requires the 

governing body of each municipality and county to certify that their local unit’s hiring 
practices comply with the United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s 
“Enforcement Guidance on the Consideration of Arrest and Conviction Records in 
Employment Decisions under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,” as amended, 42 
U.S.C. §2000e et seq., (April 25, 2012) before submitting its approved annual budget to 
the Division of Local Government Services in the New Jersey Department of Community 
Affairs; and 

WHEREAS, the members of the Governing Body have familiarized themselves with 
the contents of the above-referenced enforcement guidance and with their local unit’s 
hiring practices as they pertain to the consideration of an individual’s criminal history, as 
evidenced by the group affidavit form of the governing body attached hereto. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City of 
North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey hereby states that 
it has complied with N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5, as amended by P.L. 2017, c.183, by certifying 
that the local unit’s hiring practices comply with the above-referenced enforcement 
guidance and hereby directs the City Clerk to cause to be maintained and available for 
inspection a certified copy of this resolution and required affidavit to show evidence of 
said compliance. 
 
****************************************************************************** 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, 
State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a 
Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a 
meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 2024. 
 
Dated:  January 16, 2024        

Signed: ___________________________ 
           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk   

       
       
 Approved:______________________ 
Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor  

 
 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 

Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
54-24 

 
 
 



GOVERNING BODY CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO P.L. 2017, C.183 
OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE UNITED STATES EQUAL EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION’S “ENFORCEMENT GUIDANCE ON THE 

CONSIDERATION OF ARREST AND CONVICTION RECORDS IN 
EMPLOYMENT DECISIONS UNDER TITLE VII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT 

OF 1964”  
 

GROUP AFFIDAVIT FOR MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES 
NO PHOTO COPIES OF SIGNATURES 

 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
 
We, members of the governing body of the City of North Wildwood being duly sworn 
according to law, upon our oath depose and say: 
 

1. We are duly elected members of the Governing Body of the City of North 
Wildwood in the County of Cape May. 

2. Pursuant to P.L. 2017, c.183, we have familiarized ourselves with the contents 
of the United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s 
“Enforcement Guidance on the Consideration of Arrest and Conviction 
Records in Employment Decisions Under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964,” as amended, 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq., (April 25, 2012). 

3. We are familiar with the local unit’s hiring practices as they pertain to the 
consideration of an individual’s criminal history. 

4. We certify that the local unit’s hiring practices comply with the above-
referenced enforcement guidance. 

 
 
________________________________ ______________________________ 
Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor   Salvatore Zampirri, President of Council 
 
________________________________ ______________________________ 
Edwin Koehler, Council 2nd Ward  Margaret Bishop, Council 1st Ward 
 
________________________________ ______________________________ 
David Del Conte, Council 1st Ward  James Kane, Council 1st Ward 
 
________________________________ ______________________________ 
Kellyann Tolomeo, Council 2nd Ward Joseph Rullo, Council 2nd Ward 
 
 
Sworn to and subscribed before me this  
______ day of ____________, 2024. 
Notary Public of New Jersey 
 
      ______________________________ 
      W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
The Municipal Clerk (or Clerk of the Board of Chosen Freeholders as the case may be) 
shall set forth the reason for the absence of signature of any members of the governing 
body. 
 
IMPORTANT:  This certificate must be executed before a municipality or county can 
submit its approved budget to the Division of Local Government Services.  The executed 
certificate and the adopted resolution must be kept on file and available for inspection.  



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

IDENTIFYING EMPLOYEES ASSIGNED TO STATE OR COUNTY TASK 
FORCES OR TEAMS AND MUNICIPAL OEM VOLUNTEERS AND CERT 

TEAM MEMBERS FOR INSURANCE PURPOSES  
 

 WHEREAS, the Atlantic County Municipal Joint Insurance Fund 
("ACMJIF"), of which the City of North Wildwood is a member, recently has 
identified the need for all member municipalities to acknowledge and authorize, by 
resolution of the governing body, any municipal employee who has been appointed 
or assigned to any State or County Task Force or Team and any municipal 
volunteer or CERT Team member assigned to the Office of Emergency 
Management; and  
 

 WHEREAS, the purposes of the action of the ACMJIF is to protect such 
employees and municipalities with respect to insurance coverage provided by the 
ACMJIF for workers' compensation and general liability; and  
 

 WHEREAS, any employee who has been assigned to a State or County 
Task Force or Team, and any municipal volunteer or CERT Team member 
assigned to the Office of Emergency Management but not so identified by 
resolution of the governing body, is at risk at not receiving appropriate insurance 
coverage in the event of a claim.  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of Council of 
the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey 
as follows: 1) All of the statements of the preamble are incorporated herein by this 
reference thereto as though the same were set forth at length. 2) The Schedule of 
Employees appointed or assigned to State or County Task Forces or Teams and 
municipal volunteer or CERT Team member assigned to the Office of Emergency 
Management annexed hereto as Exhibit "A" is incorporated herein and made a part 
hereof by this reference thereto. 3) The City Administrator be and hereby is 
authorized to update, as needed, the Schedule annexed as Exhibit "A" in the event 
that additional employees are appointed or assigned to State or County Task Forces 
or Teams and all such updated schedules shall be dated clearly.  
 
******************************************************************************************************************* 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY       COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 
16th day of January 2024. 
 

Dated: _January 16, 2024__    Signed: _____________________________ 
                     W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

       Approved: __________________________ 
         Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor        

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

56-24



 
Exhibit A 

January 16, 2024 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Dominick McClain 
 CMC OEM CERT Coordinator & Training Instructor 
 

Joshua Carter 
 CMC OEM CERT Training Instructor 
 CMC Regional Urban Search Team 
 

Michael Blizzard 
 CMC OEM CERT Training Instructor  

CMC EMS Assistant Coordinator 
 

Matthew Capone 
 CMC Regional Urban Search Team 
 
Harry Godfrey 
 CMC Fire Marshal Office 
 

Joseph Alesandrini 
 CMC Regional Urban Search Team 
 
Sean Stanton 
 CMC Regional Urban Search Team 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
CMC Regional SWAT Team 
 Sgt. Brian Harkins 
 

CMC Police Academy 
 Sgt. Adam McGraw 
 Lt. Katherine Madden 
 Sgt. Michael Griser 
 Sgt. Bryan Skill 
 Lt. Justin Robinson 
 Sgt. Mark Elliott 

Det. Justin Melo 
 Officer Joseph Kopetsky 
 Officer James Flynn 
 Officer Mark Santiago 
 

CMC Prosecutors Office CART Team 
 Sgt. Mark Elliott 
 

CMC Drug Recognition Team 
 Officer Mark Santiago 
 

Hostage Negotiation Team 
 Officer Laura Loftus 
 Officer Amanda Hegarty 
 

CMC Civil Unrest Team 
 Officer Dominic DeMusz 
 Officer James Baehr 
 

CMC School/Juvenile Liaison  
 Officer Eric Nevil 
 

OFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT & CERT TEAM MEMBERS 
Patrick Rosenello, Coordinator   Michael Brown Sr. 
Robert Matteucci, Dep. Coordinator  Richard Redmer 
Lewis Ostrander Doug Nordberg  Joe Gawrysiak 

 Doug Ford  Roy Burnham  George Greenland  
Rick Carroll  Thomas Drumm Dan McGowan   
Dennis Dool      Sean McDermott Liz Golden      
Rick Haas  W. Scott Jett  Denise Connelly 

 Edwin Koehler  Gavin Rosenello 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

RESOLUTION 
 

APPROVING HEREFORD INLET LIGHTHOUSE ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2023 AND 
AUTHORIZING SUBMISSION OF SAME TO STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood (“North Wildwood”) and the State of New 
Jersey, Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Parks and Forestry (“State”) are 
parties to a Lease, dated April 2, 2009 under the terms of which North Wildwood leases the 
Hereford Inlet Lighthouse from the State; and 
 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Lease North Wildwood is required to submit to the 
State of New Jersey, Department of Environmental Protection an Annual Report, the required 
contents of which are more particularly set forth in Paragraph 18A of the Lease; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk and City Administrator have submitted to Council for review 
the Annual Report from 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, Council is satisfied that the Annual Report for 2023 meets the requirements 
of the Lease and otherwise is acceptable; and 

 

WHEREAS, Council deems it prudent and appropriate to authorize submission of said 
Report by the City Clerk to the State of New Jersey, Department of Environmental Protection. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of Council of the City of 
North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

 

1)   All of the statements of the preamble are repeated and are incorporated herein by this 
reference thereto as though the same were set forth at length. 
 

2)  The Hereford Inlet Lighthouse Annual Report for 2023 is approved and shall be 
submitted by the City Clerk to the State of New Jersey, Department of Environmental Protection.  
 

3) The Hereford Inlet Lighthouse Annual Report for 2023 shall be annexed to and made a 
part of this resolution.  
 
 
 
****************************************************************************** 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 
14th day of January, 2024. 
 

Dated:    _____January 16, 2024_____         Signed: ___________________________ 
              W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                      
 

      APPROVED: ____________________________ 
        Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 

57-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
APPOINTMENT OF MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR  

 
WHEREAS, the North Wildwood Office of Emergency Management has been established in 

accordance with the provisions of §3-60 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood; and 

WHEREAS, §3-38C of the Code of the City of North Wildwood and N.J.S.A. Appendix A:9-40.1 
require the Mayor to appoint a Municipal Emergency Management Coordinator from among the residents 
of the City of North Wildwood; and 

WHEREAS, §3-38C further indicates that nothing in that Section shall be interpreted as precluding 
the Mayor from appointing himself/herself as Municipal Emergency Management Coordinator; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has forwarded his appointment of Patrick Rosenello as Municipal 
Emergency Management Coordinator for a term of three (3) years beginning on January 1, 2024 and 
ending on December 31, 2026 to City Council for confirmation; and 

WHEREAS, Council deems to be in the best interest of the City and its residents that the 
aforementioned appointment be confirmed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of City Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, as follows: 

1)  All of the statements of the preamble are repeated and are incorporated herein by this reference 
thereto as though the same were set forth at length. 

2)  The Mayor’s appointment of Patrick Rosenello as Municipal Emergency Management 
Coordinator for a term of three (3) years beginning on January 1, 2024 and ending on December 31, 2026 
be and it hereby is confirmed.  

3) Upon his appointment of a Deputy Emergency Management Coordinator, as a required by §3-
38E of the Code of the City of North Wildwood, the Municipal Emergency Management Coordinator 
shall so advise City Council in writing.  

 
************************************************************************************ 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 2024. 
 
Dated: _____January 16, 2024______                                       Signed: ___________________________ 
                           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
                        APPROVED: ____________________________ 
               Patrick Rosenello, Mayor 

 
 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 

Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 
 

58-24 
 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 
 

APPOINTING CITY REPRESENTATIVE TO THE  
CAPE MAY COUNTY ANIMAL SHELTER ADVISORY BOARD 

 

WHEREAS, the Cape May County Animal Shelter Advisory Board has a representative 
from each municipality in the County; and  

WHEREAS, North Wildwood resident Robert Berardo has served as the North Wildwood 
representative on said Board; and 

WHEREAS, Robert Berardo is a qualified candidate to be reappointed as the representative 
of the City to said Board. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of Council of the City of 
North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

1)  All of the statements of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as 
though the same were set forth at length. 
 
2)  The appointment of Robert Berardo as the representative of the City of North Wildwood on 
the Cape May County Animal Shelter Advisory Board be and it hereby is approved. 
 
3)  The City Clerk shall forward a true copy of this Resolution to the Director of the Cape May 
County Animal Shelter. 
 
 

 

****************************************************************************** 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 
16th day of January, 2024. 
 

      Dated: ___January 16, 2024______                              Signed: ___________________________ 
                          W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
 

                     APPROVED: ____________________________ 
               Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 

59-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING AN INTRA-COUNTY MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD AND 

THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
 

WHEREAS, an agreement is to be made by and between the County of Cape May 
(“County”) and Municipalities located within Cape May County, which includes, but is not 
limited to, the various departments, agencies, districts, and entities within the County and 
Municipalities, such as law enforcement, public works, Community Emergency Response Teams 
(CERT), Medical Reserve Corps (MRC), construction officials, Emergency Medical Services 
(“EMS”), fire departments, volunteer fire companies and/or EMS organizations or fire districts.  
The County, Municipalities, and the various departments, agencies, districts, and entities are 
singularly referred to as a “Participating Entity” and collectively as “Participating Entities.”  For 
purposes of this Agreement, a Requesting Entity is a Participating Entity that requests assistance 
pursuant to the Agreement.  A Providing Entity is a Participating Entity that provides response 
assistance or resource support pursuant to the Agreement.   

 
WHEREAS, the President of the United States, in Homeland Security Presidential 

Directive 5 (“HSPD-5” or the “Presidential Directive”), directed the Secretary of the Department 
of Homeland Security (“DHS”) to develop and administer a National Incident Management 
System (“NIMS”), which would provide a consistent nationwide approach to Federal, State, 
local1 and tribal governments to work together more effectively and efficiently to prevent, 
prepare for, respond to and recover from domestic incidents, regardless of cause, size or 
complexity; and 

 
WHEREAS, then-Acting Governor Richard J. Codey, in his Executive Order No. 50, 

dated August 5, 2005 (the “Executive Order”), implemented NIMS as the state standard for 
incident management and directed its use for all emergency incidents in the State of New Jersey; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, “The New Jersey Civilian Defense and Disaster Control Act”, N.J.S.A. 

App. A:9-30 et seq. (the “Disaster Control Act”), provides for the health, safety and welfare of 
the people of the State of New Jersey during any emergency by centralizing control of all civilian 
activities having to do with such emergency in the Governor, who shall have authority over the 
resources of each and every political subdivision of the State to cope with any condition that 
shall arise out of such emergency; and 
 

WHEREAS, in addition to the Disaster Control Act, the “Fire Service Resource 
Emergency Deployment Act,” N.J.S.A. 52:14E-11 et seq. (the “Fire Service Act”) establishing a 
mechanism for the coordination of fire service resources throughout the State to facilitate a quick 
and efficient response to any emergency incident or situation that requires the immediate 
deployment of those resources in order to protect life and property from the danger or destruction 
of fire, explosion or other disaster; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Director of the Division of Fire Safety in the Department of Community 

Affairs promulgated rules commonly referred to as the “Fire Service Resource Emergency 
Deployment Regulations” N.J.A.C. 5:75A-1.1 et seq. (the “Fire Service Regulations”), and 

                                                 
1  As defined in the Homeland Security Act of 2002, Section 2(10), the term “local government” includes:  

(A)  a county, municipality, city, town, township, local public authority, school district, 
special district, intrastate district, council of governments … regional or interstate 
government entity, or agency or instrumentality of a local government; 

(B)  an Indian tribe or authorized tribal organization, or in Alaska a Native village or 
Alaska Regional Native Corporation; and 

(C)  a rural community, unincorporated town or village, or other public entity. 
See 6 U.S.C. §101(10) (2006). 



N.J.A.C. 5:75A-2.2 specifically requires each municipality or fire district to adopt a local fire 
mutual aid plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, an emergency responder is defined as anyone employed by, contracted to 

provided services to, or otherwise affiliated with the Participating Entities and possessing special 
skills, qualifications, training, knowledge, and experience beneficial to the mitigation of disaster 
situations. An emergency responder includes, but is not limited to, the following: law 
enforcement officers, fire fighters, emergency medical services personnel, physicians, nurses, or 
other public health officials, emergency management personnel, public works personnel, those 
persons with specialized equipment operations skills or training or any other skills needed to 
provide aid in a declared emergency: and 
 

WHEREAS, the Participating Entities recognize the benefits of entering into the 
Agreement for mutual aid and assistance with each other to protect against loss, damage or 
destruction by fire, catastrophe or other extraordinary devastation, civil unrest, major emergency, 
major criminal acts, acts of terrorism, and/or natural and man-made disasters or catastrophes 
which threaten or affect life, property and environment (the “Emergency Situations”) and to 
address those situations when additional aid and assistance is needed to protect the best interests 
of the persons and property in each individual jurisdiction. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the City of 
North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, New Jersey, that: 
 

1. All of the statements of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as 
though the same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Intra-County Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement between the County of Cape 

May and the City of North Wildwood is hereby approved. 
 

3. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute the above-referenced Agreement on 
behalf of the City of North Wildwood. 

 
4. The appropriate officials and employees of the City of North Wildwood are authorized to 

carry out the intent of this Resolution. 
 

5. An executed copy of the Intra-County Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement between 
the County of Cape May and the City of North Wildwood shall be annexed to and made 
part of this Resolution, which shall also be forwarded to the Cape May County Office of 
Emergency Management. 

 

****************************************************************************** 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 
16th day of January, 2024. 
 

Dated: __January 16, 2024_______                               Signed: ___________________________ 
                      W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

          APPROVED: ____________________________ 
           Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
 

60-24 



INTRA-COUNTY 
MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN PARTICIPATING ENTITY 
 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on this ___ day of ______________, 2024, by and 

between the County of Cape May (“County”) and Municipalities located within Cape May 
County, which includes, but is not limited to, the various departments, agencies, districts, and 
entities within the County and Municipalities, such as law enforcement, public works, 
Community Emergency Response Teams (CERT), Medical Reserve Corps (MRC), construction 
officials, Emergency Medical Services (“EMS”), fire departments, volunteer fire companies 
and/or EMS organizations or fire districts.  The County, Municipalities, and the various 
departments, agencies, districts, and entities are singularly referred to as a “Participating Entity” 
and collectively as “Participating Entities.”  For purposes of this Agreement, a Requesting Entity 
is a Participating Entity that requests assistance pursuant to the Agreement.  A Providing Entity 
is a Participating Entity that provides response assistance or resource support pursuant to the 
Agreement.   

 
WHEREAS, the President of the United States, in Homeland Security Presidential 

Directive 5 (“HSPD-5” or the “Presidential Directive”), directed the Secretary of the Department 
of Homeland Security (“DHS”) to develop and administer a National Incident Management 
System (“NIMS”), which would provide a consistent nationwide approach to Federal, State, 
local1 and tribal governments to work together more effectively and efficiently to prevent, 
prepare for, respond to and recover from domestic incidents, regardless of cause, size or 
complexity; and 

 
WHEREAS, then-Acting Governor Richard J. Codey, in his Executive Order No. 50, 

dated August 5, 2005 (the “Executive Order”), implemented NIMS as the state standard for 
incident management and directed its use for all emergency incidents in the State of New Jersey; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, “The New Jersey Civilian Defense and Disaster Control Act”, N.J.S.A. 

App. A:9-30 et seq. (the “Disaster Control Act”), provides for the health, safety and welfare of 
the people of the State of New Jersey during any emergency by centralizing control of all civilian 
activities having to do with such emergency in the Governor, who shall have authority over the 
resources of each and every political subdivision of the State to cope with any condition that 
shall arise out of such emergency; and 
 

WHEREAS, in addition to the Disaster Control Act, the “Fire Service Resource 
Emergency Deployment Act,” N.J.S.A. 52:14E-11 et seq. (the “Fire Service Act”) establishing a 

                                                           
1  As defined in the Homeland Security Act of 2002, Section 2(10), the term “local government” includes:  

(A)  a county, municipality, city, town, township, local public authority, school district, special district, 
intrastate district, council of governments … regional or interstate government entity, or agency or 
instrumentality of a local government; 

(B)  an Indian tribe or authorized tribal organization, or in Alaska a Native village or Alaska Regional 
Native Corporation; and 

(C)  a rural community, unincorporated town or village, or other public entity. 
See 6 U.S.C. §101(10) (2006). 



INTRA-COUNTY 
MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN PARTICIPATING ENTITY 
 

mechanism for the coordination of fire service resources throughout the State to facilitate a quick 
and efficient response to any emergency incident or situation that requires the immediate 
deployment of those resources in order to protect life and property from the danger or destruction 
of fire, explosion or other disaster; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Director of the Division of Fire Safety in the Department of Community 
Affairs promulgated rules commonly referred to as the “Fire Service Resource Emergency 
Deployment Regulations” N.J.A.C. 5:75A-1.1 et seq. (the “Fire Service Regulations”), and 
N.J.A.C. 5:75A-2.2 specifically requires each municipality or fire district to adopt a local fire 
mutual aid plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, an emergency responder is defined as anyone employed by, contracted to 

provided services to, or otherwise affiliated with the Participating Entities and possessing special 
skills, qualifications, training, knowledge, and experience beneficial to the mitigation of disaster 
situations. An emergency responder includes, but is not limited to, the following: law 
enforcement officers, fire fighters, emergency medical services personnel, physicians, nurses, or 
other public health officials, emergency management personnel, public works personnel, those 
persons with specialized equipment operations skills or training or any other skills needed to 
provide aid in a declared emergency: and 
 

WHEREAS, the Participating Entities recognize the benefits of entering into the 
Agreement for mutual aid and assistance with each other to protect against loss, damage or 
destruction by fire, catastrophe or other extraordinary devastation, civil unrest, major emergency, 
major criminal acts, acts of terrorism, and/or natural and man-made disasters or catastrophes 
which threaten or affect life, property and environment (the “Emergency Situations”) and to 
address those situations when additional aid and assistance is needed to protect the best interests 
of the persons and property in each individual jurisdiction. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

in this agreement, the Participating Entity respectively agree as follows: 
 
1. Mutual Aid and Assistance. Upon request as provided for herein, the 

Participating Entities shall provide mutual aid and assistance to each other. 
Mutual Aid and Assistance shall include the following: 

 
a. Rendering of aid and assistance to an emergency scene under the control 

and /or jurisdiction of another Participating Entity, this may include      
pre-established immediate response or other response. (i.e. Providing 
sheltering of a Requesting Entity’s population by one or more 
Participating Entities). Emergencies covered by this Agreement may 
include requests for assistance to incidents including but not limited to 
fires, civil unrest, major criminal or emergency events, natural and human-
caused disasters or a catastrophe affecting the environment.  
 



INTRA-COUNTY 
MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN PARTICIPATING ENTITY 
 

b. Rendering of aid and assistance by one or more Participating Entity to 
another Participating Entity to serve as supplemental reserve protection in 
the Requesting Entity's jurisdiction while the Requesting Entity is on an 
emergency call and/or otherwise unable to address the emergency service 
needs in its jurisdiction. 
 

c. Participating in training exercises with other Participating Entities, where 
the purpose of such training and exercises is to coordinate and prepare for 
fire, civil unrest, major emergency natural disaster, environmental disaster, 
and/or other emergency situations that are a threat to life or property.  

 
2. Requests for Mutual Aid and Assistance. All requests for mutual aid and 

assistance shall be in accordance with all procedures in effect at the time of the 
request. The Requesting Entity shall immediately request the Providing Entities 
to the scene of an emergency in accordance with the pre-established policies 
and procedures in effect at the time of the request.  

 
a. Each Participating Entity shall develop (as part of their SOP) a Mutual Aid 

Plan to include mutual aid assistance to the levels deemed acceptable 
when measured against potential risks.  

b. All Local Fire Mutual Aid Plans shall follow the Fire Regulations. 
 

3.           Reimbursement of Expenses. 

a. No Participating Entity shall bill a Requesting Entity for wages, salaries, 
or use of equipment in making mutual aid and assistance responses, except 
as is provided for by a pre-existing separate agreement and/or as permitted 
within the regulations of the Stafford Disaster and Emergency Assistance 
Act, 42 U.S.C. §5121 et seq. and the implementing regulations of 44 
C.F.R. §204.01 et seq., in which case reimbursements as permitted therein 
shall be recoverable as provided within said regulations. 

b. Responding Entities shall be responsible for any loss incurred to their own 
property while providing mutual aid and assistance.  However, the 
Requesting Entity shall replace fuel, chemical substances, crowd control 
gases, water additives, sterilized medical equipment and other disposable 
goods that are used for mitigation of an incident by a Responding Entity 
and will cause the Responding Entity to incur an expenditure to replace 
same.  Upon receipt of an appropriate voucher, the Requesting Entity shall 
reimburse the Responding Entity for the expenditure involved.  Said 
reimbursement or replacement shall not be construed as payment or 
consideration for making the mutual aid and assistance response but only 
as an effort to compensate a Responding Entity for its actual cost outlay in 
replacing these expendable materials.   



INTRA-COUNTY 
MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN PARTICIPATING ENTITY 
 

c. This Agreement does not supersede any agreement either formal or 
informal between jurisdictions (i.e. state or federal governments) or 
between Responding Entity (e.g. fire departments of different 
municipalities). 

d. Participating Entity when possible, will be reimbursed in accordance with 
the Spill Compensation Control Act (N.J.S.A. 58:10-23.11a et seq.) and 
the regulations promulgated pursuant there to (N.J.A.C. 7:1E -5.1 et seq.). 

e. This Agreement recognizes the provisions as required by the Disaster 
Control Act and specifically the Emergency Medical Services Act, 
N.J.S.A. 26:2K-60. 

f. Any expenses recoverable from third parties by the Requesting Entity 
shall be equitably distributed among Participating Entities.  Nothing herein 
shall operate to bar any recovery of funds from any state or federal agency 
under existing statutes. 

4.           Limitation of Providing Mutual Aid and Assistance. Nothing contained in 
this Agreement shall be construed to require a Participating Entity to make a 
mutual aid and assistance response if the response will leave the Participating 
Entity’s jurisdiction without sufficient police, fire, ambulance and/or 
emergency protection or other vital or necessary services. 

5.            Death or Disability. If any member of a Participating Entity suffers injury or 
death at the scene of a mutual aid and assistance emergency or training 
exercise, the member or the member's designee or legal representative shall be 
entitled to all salary, pension rights, worker's compensation and other benefits 
to which the member would be entitled if injury or death occurred in the 
performance of duties within the jurisdiction of the Participating Entity in 
accordance to N.J.S.A. 40A:14-26.  Each Participating Entity shall be 
individually responsible for providing adequate benefits, coverage, and 
compensation for its members and/or employees.   

6.           Members Authority. The members of each Responding Entity making a 
mutual aid and assistance response shall have the same powers and authority as 
the members of a Requesting Entity at the scene of the emergency in 
accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:14-156.2.  Said members of a Responding 
Entity shall also have, while so acting, such rights and immunities as they 
would otherwise enjoy in the performance of their normal duties within their 
own jurisdiction. 

7.           Provisions Specific to Law Enforcement Training.  Any law enforcement 
Participating Entity may, but shall not be required to, pay for training for 
another law enforcement Participating Entity’s personnel out of available or 



INTRA-COUNTY 
MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN PARTICIPATING ENTITY 
 

appropriate funds when, in the determination of the Participating Entity, such 
individual training enhances the ability of other Participating Entities to 
perform Mutual Aid and Assistance duties under this Agreement. 

8.            Liability Insurance; Indemnification.  

a. The Participating Entities represent that each is insured for liability 
purposes and agree to remain insured for so long as this Agreement 
remains in effect. The Participating Entities agree, to the extent possible 
under the terms of their respective insurance coverages, to name each 
other as additional insured on such policies of insurances to protect against 
liability arising from the provision of services under this Agreement, and 
to maintain such coverages throughout the duration of this Agreement. 
 

b. The County shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Municipality 
from and against any and all claims, losses, costs, attorney’s fees, 
damages, or injury including death and/or property loss, expense claims or 
demands arising out of or caused or alleged to have been caused in any 
manner by a defect in any equipment or materials supplied by the County 
or by the performance of any work under this Agreement, including all 
suits or actions of every kind or description brought against the 
Municipality, either individually or jointly with the County for or on 
account of any damage or injury to any person or persons or property, 
caused or occasioned or alleged to have been caused by, or on account of, 
the performance of any work pursuant to or in connection with this 
Agreement or through any negligence or alleged negligence or through 
any act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or fault or alleged act, 
omission or fault of the County, its employees, or agents or others under 
the County’s control. 

 
c. The Municipality shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the County 

from and against any and all claims, losses, costs, attorney’s fees, 
damages, or injury including death and/or property loss, expense claims or 
demands arising out of or caused or alleged to have been caused in any 
manner by a defect in any equipment or materials supplied by the 
Municipality or by the performance of any work under this Agreement, 
including all suits or actions of every kind or description brought against 
the County, either individually or jointly with the Municipality for or on 
account of any damage or injury to any person or persons or property, 
caused or occasioned or alleged to have been caused by, or on account of, 
the performance of any work pursuant to or in connection with this 
Agreement or through any negligence or alleged negligence or through 
any act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or fault or alleged act, 
omission or fault of the Municipality, its employees, or agents or others 
under the Municipality’s control.  



INTRA-COUNTY 
MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN PARTICIPATING ENTITY 
 

 

9. Term; Withdrawal. This Agreement shall commence as of the effective date 
of the Resolution adopted by the Cape May County Board of County 
Commissioners and continue for a period of five (5) years or until terminated 
by a Participating Entity.  Any Participating Entity may withdrawal from this 
Agreement by providing all other Participating Entities and the Cape May 
County Office of Emergency Management within sixty (60) days advanced 
written notice of withdrawal, clearly specifying the applicable date of 
withdrawal. In the event of withdrawal by a Participating Entity, this 
Agreement will continue in full force and effect for all remaining Participating 
Entities.   

10. Legal Authority. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 
of New Jersey.  This Agreement is expressly made in accordance with 
N.J.S.A. 40A:14-26 and N.J.S.A. 40A:14-156.1.  Moreover, all Law 
Enforcement Operations conducted by the County Prosecutor and his officers 
and agents are deemed subject to the provisions of Wright v. State, 169 N.J. 
442 (2001).   

11.            Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding 
between the Participating Entities. This Agreement supersedes all 
communications, representations, or prior agreements, oral or written, between 
Participating Entity with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

12.           Severability.  The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall not 
render invalid any other provision. If for any reason, any provision of this 
Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unenforceable, that provision shall be deemed severable and this Agreement 
may be enforced with that provision severed or modified by court order.  

13.           Amendments.  This Agreement may only be amended by written consent of all 
the parties hereto. The undersigned Participating Entities have hereby adopted 
and subscribed to and approve this Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement to 
which this signature page will be attached and agree to be party thereto and be 
bound by the terms thereof.  



INTRA-COUNTY 
MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN PARTICIPATING ENTITY 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Participating Entities hereby executes this Agreement 
and affixes its corporate seal on the date shown.  By executing this Agreement, the 
Participating Entity acknowledges that said execution has been duly authorized by proper 
Resolution, a copy of which is annexed to this Agreement. 
 
 
Participating Entity:_______________________________  Date: _________________________ 
 
 
Authorized Signature:      Official Title:     
 

Authorized Signature:      Official Title:     



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS,   The Application of Wynnefield Development, LLC doing business at 8800 Seaview 
Avenue, Wildwood Crest, NJ has applied to the Planning Board for amended preliminary & final siteplan 
approval to construct two (2) 6-unit buildings on two (2) separate lots together with minor subdivision approval 
to realign lot lines & create two (2) lots from three (3) existing lots & a rearyard setback variance (8.7 ft. 
proposed where 10 ft. is required) for properties located at Block 291, Lots 7, 8 & 13 of the Municipal Tax Map 
of the City, commonly known as 418 - 420 East 22nd Avenue; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 276 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services 
incurred in connection with review of the application; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s 
professionals on March 8, 2017; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant 
within 90 days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $3,000.00 & Applicant has made written 
request for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the 
Chief Financial Officer of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $97.40. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 

Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 
********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 
2024. 

 
      Dated: ___January 16, 2024_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                         
 

          
 APPROVED: __________________________ 

Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion     Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
66-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS,   the Application (Z-17-7-1) of Gerard & Kimberley Mullen, owners of the property located at 118 
East 4th Avenue, a/k/a Block 206, Lot 8, seeking a D3 Conditional Use variance in order to renovate an existing duplex 
located on an undersized lot in the R-1.5 Zoning District as the proposed structure does not meet the required conditions 
which permit the construction of a duplex in the zone, and ‘c’ variance relief with respect to the frontyard & sideyard 
setback(s); and 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 276 
of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services incurred in connection 
with review of the application; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s professionals on 
March 14, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant within 90 
days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $1,600.00 & Applicant has made written request 
for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the Chief Financial Officer 
of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $420.55. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 

Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 
********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 
2024. 

 
      Dated: ___January 16, 2024_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                         
 

          
 APPROVED: __________________________ 

Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion     Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
64-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS, the Application (P-20-10-2) submitted by Mike Mitchell proposes to subdivide the 
property located at 1901 New York Avenue, Block 170, lots 3 & 4 in the City’s R-2 Zoning District, in order to 
create two (2) lots for the proposed development of single-family semi-detached dwellings (duplexes) & one (1) 
lot for the development of a single-family dwelling.  The Applicant is requesting a ‘c’ variance(s) in connection 
with the required minimum lot area, minimum lot frontage/width, minimum lot depth, minimum sideyard 
setback & minimum frontyard setback for proposed lots 3.01 & 3.02; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 276 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services 
incurred in connection with review of the application; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s 
professionals on December 9, 2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant 
within 90 days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $2,000.00 & Applicant has made written 
request for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the 
Chief Financial Officer of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $676.60. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 

Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 
********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 
2024. 

 
      Dated: ___January 16, 2024_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                         
 

          
 APPROVED: __________________________ 

Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion     Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
65-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS, the Application (P-21-9-3) submitted by Carl Maier seeks ‘c’ variance relief in relation to 
a proposed swimming pool & the distance of same to the principal structure (ie expanded rear deck) at the 
property located at 701 Ocean Avenue, a/k/a Block: 306, Lot: 13 in the City’s R-1.5 Zoning District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 276 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services 
incurred in connection with review of the application; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s 
professionals on November 10, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant 
within 90 days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $800.00 & Applicant has made written 
request for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the 
Chief Financial Officer of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $212.50. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 

Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 
********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 
2024. 

 
      Dated: ___January 16, 2024_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                         
 

          
 APPROVED: __________________________ 

Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion     Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
63-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS, the Application submitted by Kevin Carrigan seeks ‘c’ variance relief in in connection with the 
proposed expansion of a deck in the rearyard of the property located at 1411 Hoffman Canal, a/k/a Block 118.02, Lot 22, 
(P-22-1-2) in the City’s R-2 Zoning District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 276 
of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services incurred in connection 
with review of the application; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s professionals on 
March 9, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant within 90 
days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $800.00 & Applicant has made written request 
for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the Chief Financial Officer 
of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $214.80. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 

Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 
********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 
2024. 

 
      Dated: ___January 16, 2024_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                         
 

          
 APPROVED: __________________________ 

Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion     Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
61-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING RETURN OF BALANCE OF ESCROW DEPOSIT 
 

WHEREAS, the Application (P-2020-11-2) submitted by Anastasi & Cook proposes to demolish an 
existing single-family dwelling in order to construct a new single-family semi-detached (duplex) dwelling 
located at 419-421 East 8th Avenue, Block 306, Lot 18 in the City’s R-1.5 Zoning District.  The Applicant is 
requesting Conditional Use approval in connection with the proposed construction of the single-family semi-
detached dwelling as same is permitted in the R-1.5 Zoning District as a permitted conditional use, subject to 
the area & bulk requirements governing the construction of single-family semi-detached dwellings in the R-2 
Zoning District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application required funds to be escrowed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 276 of the Code of the City of North Wildwood in order to pay for the costs of professional services 
incurred in connection with review of the application; and  
 

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed & approved by the Planning Board & the Board’s 
professionals on January 13, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, §276-67(E)(2) provides that unused escrow balances may be returned to the Applicant 
within 90 days upon written request by the applicant & as authorized by City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of funds submitted and escrowed was $2,000.00 & Applicant has made written 
request for return of the unused balance, after Board professionals’ fees have been paid, which amount the 
Chief Financial Officer of the City of North Wildwood has calculated to be $1,005.50. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of North 

Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 

1. All of the allegations of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 
same were set forth at length. 

 
2. The Chief Financial Officer be and hereby is authorized to return the unused escrow balance as aforesaid 

to the Applicant. 
 

3. The Chief Financial Officer and such other officials as are necessary be and they hereby are authorized 
to take such actions that are necessary and proper in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this 
resolution. 

 
********************************************************************************* 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January, 
2024. 

 
      Dated: ___January 16, 2024_______                  Signed: ___________________________ 
                   W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
                         
 

          
 APPROVED: __________________________ 

Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion     Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
62-24 



 

 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

REFUND FOR OVERPAYMENT OF REAL ESTATE TAXES 
 

 WHEREAS, the Tax Collector reports that the following persons or 

associations of persons have overpaid and/or paid in error real estate taxes as set 

forth on the schedule below. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of 

the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey 

that refunds be given to the following persons or associations of persons in the 

amounts set forth: 
 
 

 
PROPERTY    PAYEE     AMOUNT 
 

BLK 150  LT 9      MW OF WILDWOOD, LLC   $2,761.11 

2023 QTR 1 & 2    6109 ATLANTIC AVENUE 

WILDWOOD CREST, NJ 08260 

 

 

 

 

 

TOTAL           $2,761.11 

 

   
        

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Tax Collector be and he is hereby 

authorized, empowered and directed to make the necessary corrections in his 

records and to see to the payment of these refunds. 
 

****************************************************************************** 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY               COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 

I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 

Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 

Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January 

2024. 

 

Dated:    January 16, 2024         Signed: _________________________                                

        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 

Approved: __________________________ 

  Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 

Tolomeo       

Rullo       

Kane       

Del Conte       

Koehler       

Bishop       

Zampirri       

 
 

    

67-24 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

REFUND FOR OVERPAYMENT OF SEWER TAXES 

 
 WHEREAS, the Tax Collector reports that the following persons or associations of 

persons have overpaid and/or paid in error sewer taxes as set forth on the schedule below. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of Council of the City of 

North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey that refunds be given to 

the following persons or associations of persons in the amounts set forth: 

 

 
PROPERTY   PAYEE          AMOUNT 

 

212 E 17TH AVE A   SAILE, MARY F or JOSEPH G        $849.75 

     1447 HEDGEWOOD DR 

     WARRINGTON, PA 18976    

 

1301 ATLANTIC AVE   CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD       $171.57 

     901 ATLANTIC AVE 

     NORTH WILDWOOD, NJ 08260 

 

TOTAL                    $1,021.32 

 

     

          

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Tax Collector be and he is hereby authorized, 

empowered and directed to make the necessary corrections in his records and to see to the 

payment of these refunds. 
 

****************************************************************************** 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY               COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 

I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 

Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 

Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of January 

2024. 

 

Dated:    January 16, 2024         Signed: _________________________                                

        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 

Approved: __________________________ 

  Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 

Tolomeo       

Rullo       

Kane       

Del Conte       

Koehler       

Bishop       

Zampirri       
   

68-24 



 
CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 

Cape May County, New Jersey 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

CONFIRMING SALE OF BLOCK 115, LOT 6.01 
 

WHEREAS, by Ordinance 1924, adopted December 5, 2023, City Council authorized the sale of a 
515 sq. ft. portion of real property that is identified on the tax map as Block 115, Lot 6.01 pursuant to 
N.J.S.A. 40A:12-13, N.J.S.A. 40A:12-13.2 and N.J.S.A. 40A:12-13(b)(5) for a price of not less than 
$1.00; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of N.J.S.A. 40A:12-13 et seq., notice of the sale as 
authorized by Ordinance 1924 was published by the City Clerk in the Cape May County Herald, the 
City’s official newspaper, on November 22, 2023 after ordinance introduction and on December 6, 2023 
after ordinance adoption; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of N.J.S.A. 40A:12-13 et seq., Ordinance 1924 was posted 
on the municipal bulletin board for at least 20 days following the December 5, 2023 advertisement; and  

WHEREAS, no offer of not less than the minimum price was received by the City Administrator, and 
therefore no reconsideration of Ordinance 1924 by Council was necessary and no auction between 
contiguous landowners was required. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of North Wildwood, in 
the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

1. All of the statements of the preamble are repeated and are incorporated herein by this reference 
thereto as though the same were set forth at length. 

2. The sale of the subject property, as described above, is confirmed.   

3.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute an Agreement of Sale for Block 115, Lot 6.01 
as authorized by Ordinance 1924.  

4.   The Mayor, City Clerk, City Solicitor, together with all other appropriate officers, employees, 
professionals and staff of the City are authorized to take all steps that are necessary and proper to 
effectuate the purposes of this Resolution.    

************************************************************************************* 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY                               COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the 
Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 16th day of J, 2024. 
 
Dated:    January 16, 2024     Signed: __________________________       
                      W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 

  Approved: _______________________ 
     Patrick Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 
69-24 

     
 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING POSTPONEMENT OF BID AND AMENDMENT OF 
BID SPECIFICATIONS FOR NORTH WILDWOOD GATEWAY 

PROJECT  
 

WHEREAS, Council authorized the City Clerk to advertise for public bids for 
the Gateway Park & Improvements Project via Resolution No. 119-23, adopted on May 
2, 2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, said bids were to be received on January 10, 2024; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has determined that making amendments to the 
bid specifications are prudent and necessary at the present time; and 

 

WHEREAS, Council is in agreement with the Engineer’s opinion that amending 
the bid specifications will subsequently allow the project to proceed as planned.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of Council of the 

City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, as 
follows:  
 

1) All of the statements in the preamble are incorporated herein by this 
reference thereto as though the same were set forth at length.  
 

2) The postponement of the receipt of bids for the Gateway Parks & 
Improvements Project is hereby approved.  
 

3) The City Engineer is hereby authorized to make appropriate 
amendments to the bid specifications at his discretion for said Project and 
shall, in conjunction with the City Clerk, set a new date for the receipt of 
bids.  
 
4)   The City Clerk and City Engineer are hereby directed to publish a new 
advertisement for public bids based on the amended bid specifications as 
prepared by the City Engineer. 

 
****************************************************************************** 
STATE OF NEW JERSEY               COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of 
New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 
16th day of January 2024. 
 
Dated:    January 16, 2024         Signed: _________________________                                
        W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

Approved: __________________________ 
  Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

 
 Motion Second Aye Nay Abstain Absent 

Tolomeo       
Rullo       
Kane       
Del Conte       
Koehler       
Bishop       
Zampirri       

 

70-24                   












































	ACMJIF2023AnnualReport.pdf
	2023 Muni Annual Report Cover ACM
	Slide Number 1

	ACM 2023 State of the Fund Draft
	ACM JIF Member Municipalities
	Message from the JIF Chairperson
	JIF Organizational Structure
	Law Enforcement Consultant
	Claims Review
	EPL/POL/CYBER
	Nominating
	Member Municipality
	FUND Commissioner
	Executive Committee

	Treasurer
	Defense Panel
	Attorney
	COMMITTEES
	New Member REview
	Finance
	Safety Director
	Wellness DIrector
	Managed Care
	Fund Administrator
	Auditor
	Safety
	Strategic Planning
	Claims Administrator
	Coverage
	Actuary

	JIF Leadership
	2023 Executive Committee

	Message From the Executive Director
	JIF Myths
	2023 Challenges
	Hardening Insurance Market

	2023 Challenges
	2023 Challenges
	2023 Challenges
	2023 Challenges
	Your Risk Management Team
	SAFETY COORDINATOR:
	OPERATING RESULTS SUMMARY: ALL FUND YEARS (1987 TO 9/30/23)

	Financial Highlights
	2023 Financial Highlights
	2024 Financial Vision
	The Budget: Five Components

	2024 Budget & Strategy
	Financials: Dividends and Recoveries
	DIVIDENDS

	Subrogation
	Example
	RECOVERIES

	Claims Roadmaps
	Claims Data
	Claims by Line of COVERAGE - Fund Years 2017-2022 (valued as of 9/30/23)

	Managed Care
	TRANSitional Duty
	On a final note, the JIF’s members have wholeheartedly embraced transitional duty, allowing injured employees to return to work in a productive role while completing their final course of treatment.  Dollars saved in disability payments, indemnity cos...

	Through October 2023, ACM members used 73% of the Transitional Duty days available and saved $537,656 by accommodating their employees.
	AMONG THE HIGHEST IN THE STATE!
	Spotlight on Safety
	MEL Safety Institute (MSI)

	Safety Director Initiatives
	Technology Risk Services
	CYBER JIF Program and New Standards

	Technology Risk Services
	Controlling Technology Risks

	Risk Management
	EPL/POL Programs
	Managers and Supervisors Training
	Police Command Staff Training
	Non-Supervisory Employee and Volunteer Training
	Land Use Training

	Fund Committees
	CLAIMS REVIEW COMMITTEE
	COverage Committee
	Employment PractiCe Liability & Cyber Committee
	FINANCE COMMITTTEE
	New MEMBER REVIEW Committee
	Nominating Committee
	SAfety COmmittee
	STRATEGIC PLANNING Committee





